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(b)(1) \ 
(b) (3) CIAAct 
(b) (3) [\JatSecAct 

2 8 January 2 003_ 

MEMORANDUM FOR: . Deputy Director for Operations 

VIA: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

. . . ' 

Associate Deputy Director for 
Operations/Counterintell�gence 

Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN 

(b)(1) 
SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION (b)(3) NatSecAct 

1. t81 ·The scope of Oas investigation was to 
determine the cause of the' November 2002 d�ath of Gul 
'""""'µ.=Y'!.L_,a member of Hezbi 'ls ami, __ who was bein detained. at 
an )--�-::-----.-7"0-:---.-���������---,..,-������-1 prison facility known to CIA . 
'personnel as

' RAHMAN had been undergoing· 

(b)
.
(1) interro ation.·by CIA person�el, 

(b)(3) CIAAct Information 

(b)(3) NatSecAct contained in this report regar ing the background of 
as.well as the treatment of detainees at. 

. . ·is provided for background
. 

and .context as it 
the investigation of the death of Gul RAHMAN. 

It is not intended . to be a comprehensive review,· survJy or 
inspection of the operational pro c edures at r----� . . . l__(b)(1) 

(b  ) (  1) 
( b) (3) CIAAct 
( b) (3) NatSecAct 
( b)(6) 
( b) (7) (c) 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

.·;," .·: 

TOP s.EJCRE'f/i'Xl 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct . l��------J 
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(b)( 1 ) 

.,,. 
... •, 

1. • ) 
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.:'· ·• - ' SUBJECT : �) Death Investigation Gul RAHMAN 
•'\:\ .. :,.�J 

BACKG�OUND ON 

. 2 .  (.lffr) 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

is a pi:ison located (b ) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
This prison, which. became oper'at ional on D Sep�erober 2002, 
is desigped to house high value ��rrorist targets during 
the screening and interrogation phase of their detention, ( b )( 1 ) 

(b)(3) NatSecAct .and i's viewed by. I J Station as. critical to Statiop.' s · 

(b) (1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

efforts to exploit these targe�s for intelligence and 
imminent: t.hreat i.nforni.ation. 2 3 ·4· C. I.was set .up with 
isolation of the .detainee b�ing the primary goal., Each 
detaine�'s inteiaction with the' outside·world was intended 
to.be limited to .brief contact with the .guards and more 
extensive contact with 'his CIA interrogators. This allows 
CIA personnel to control almost all aspects of the 

) 
detainees' existence. 5 

· 

3 .  The construction of the prison was funded 'by 

(b ) ( 1 ) 
. (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

'1 
1Th'9re a·re 20 cells located inside t he prison 

The cells are 

:,. . ..
..

. 

� 
.. � 

. ... ·· 

stand�a1one concrete boxe� 
(b)(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

All cells have ·a metal ring 

Sep 2002 (Attachment 1) (b ) ( 1 ) 2 r-------.-Se
�

p 2002 (Attachment 2) 
(b)(3) C IAAct Moy 2002 (Attachment 3) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct Jun 2002 (Attachment 4) 

s Jun 2002 (Attachment 5) . 
6 Jun 2002 (Attachment 6) 

bet 2002 (At1achment 7) 

2 
. ':FOP Sf:SCRB'l://}{1 
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'fCf! 3ECRI!l'f//Xl 

'.'/:) SUBJECT: ("tT) De·ath Investigation - Gul RAHMAN 

·attached low to the wall to which prisoners are secured. 
Four of .t he cells.have high bars that run between two walls 
to which· prisoners can be secured. These four cells are 

(b)(1) �igned ·for sleep deprivation. 

(b) (3). NatSecAct T e eel ock windows are 
·covered with two coats of black paint and heavy cur'tai.ns 
making 'the cellblock completely dark. st·ereo spea'ke'rs in 
the cellb'lock play co n stant music to prevent conununications 
between detainees. 8 9 · (b.)(1) 

. J(b)(3) NatSecAct--i . 4.. ·� Tl'(b)(--f)·ison is protected byL � guard force, 10 ----i. � .. ��:fa protect the exterior of 'the 
facility (b)(3) NatSecAct 
gua.rds are stationed. in the· interior of the buildin and 

(b)(1) '---�----e inter ior gua rds '-::--------,.=�-� 
(b )(3) NatSecAct·- ________ _ __,_a_r_e____::p�·r_e_s_ e_n_t_a_I_m_o _s_ t _c_o_n_s_ t_a_n_t_l-=y_ ___. . 

. , 
! 
' .  

· "  

·
. 

' ) 

(b)(1) 

' 
) (b )( 1 ) 

(b)(3) N atSecAct 

According to 
�tation pers o nnel , although the pr ison guards lack .. 
. sig�ificant; training, a�l are very· pro�essional in (b)(1°)" 
duties.. No station of fleer has ever witnessed or l(b)(3) NatSecAct ·documented an· instance of p�isoner mistreatment by _ · 1 
guard or witnessed any ani�osity by the guards toward the 
prisoners. No interrogator has ever seen or documented 
signs of ohvsi cal abuse on any of t he prisoners. I (b)(3) C IAAct I (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(6) . �- -------------------" 
(b)(?)(c) 

s Moy 2002 (Attachment Bl 
9 ct 2002 (Attachment 9) 
1 un 2002 (Attachment 10) 
1 ep 2002 (Attachment 11) 
121ntervfew of Nov 2002 (Attachment 12) · 
13 Interview of Nov 2002'(Attachment 13) 
14 Interview of ov 2002 (Attachment 14) 

�----� 

3 (b)( 1 ) TOP OEiGRE'I'/ /Xl (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(?)(c) 

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/30 C06555318 
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'FOP SEGRE'f'//Hl 

/·" 
. . ·· ... 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct SUBJECT: +st Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN .. ·:;,,. 

.. 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) C IMct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) C IMct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

Accor ing to ....::c=-=o'-=s -'--
_____ 

_c_=.t=h-=-e �u=a=r:...: d=s:.......=a=r_,,,_e_v"--'"'-'r...., _____ __, 
pro�essional 

For the most part,. the guards are 
1:1.naware of the ident t es of the prisoners .  .Ac'cording to 
I I in · some instances the prisoners have told the 
guards their'.identities. (b)(1) 

At:cor;ding to (b)(3) NatSecAct 
gua'rds are not pr�vy to informatt6on derive from tl(b)(1) 
interrogations of the pri�oners. (b)(3) ·C IMct 

5. �) Since t�e 'estab.lishment of c-····-·-·-(b�(3) NatSecAct 
Station has.�ade an effort to �rovide training to the · 
uards . ---] 

(b)(1) ·With no 
(b)(3) NatSecAct . ex.cep ion, .in v ua s l.n. erv:t.ewe . . a the .. guards 

. · 
.. · · 

· , 
· 

treated prisoners well and . " b y-the-book, "  following a11 . 
(b)(1) . . 

. 
.! . L, __ ]directi.ons regarding the treatment ":1-nd handling of. 

(b)(3) N · tS A t prison.ers. on D June 2002, two and a half months prior to a ec c receipt of its ·first prisoner� S tation cabled 
Headquarters outl:i, .nihg the need to provide comprehensive 

(b)(1) training to the � guards in regard to their safe ani(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) C IMct · secure handl ing of the prisoner .s ,I / (b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct I 

·-· 
. on · 

· · 0 June 20 02, Headquarters concurred ih principle  with the 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

On June 21 Stat i on sen a ca e 

(b)( 1) 
· · 1s 1ntervlew ot/ loec 2002 (Attachment 15) 

· 16 lnt.ervleW of JNov 2002 (Attachrr'lent 13) 

�� �g � .. ����Act ·I,.... ..:.:..:.:.�.::.c.:....::.:==j,,..�-� ,...,tl'.:-�g .,..,n�c-:��--:���;:2!1�t 161 

4 . 
TOP SEGRE':P//JH 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 
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... ··· .  

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )(1) 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C0655531 8 

TOI:' �ee�eT//Xl 

SUBJECT: t&7 De ath r.nvestigation - Gul RAHMAN 

to Headquarters reques t ing that Headquarters i dentify s t aff 
personnel or independent contractors ·who cou.ld provide the 
tra in.ing I 12.0 On 3 July 20 02, 
Headquarters cabled / /and noti fi ed them that they were 
st ill attempting· to identify a train ing program, but had 
been unabl e to do so thus far, 21 Some time between· 3 · July 
2002 and:lB Augus t  2 0 0 2 ,  ·the idea of usi ng the ·us ·Bureau or 
Prisons (BOP) personnel · to provide ·training to the (b)(1rl . 

.guard force was s uggested. On OAugus t 20 0 2 ,  (b) (3) NatSecAct 
Station s ent a cable to Headquarters stating the following 
regarding t�e guard force : 

· 

(b)(1) 
. 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
Request update on ·the

�-� 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 
.status of BOP personne DYi l'to train the. I 
guards and Pri son st aff. station belie�es this �-� 

training· will be essentia l. given the near cer t a inty 

(b)(1 ). 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

tha t we wil l  be ca�led to account for our effort s at 
some future date; ei ther w1thin the USG or to the 
internationa'i . . communit y  (through the ICRC. ) '; 2� 

:Some t ime b.etween D September and the arrival of the firs t  
prisoner on D September 2 0 02,. \ . .1 Station utilized its 

(b)(1) . � r e s ources. to provide. init i al training for the i nterior 
L___Jguards. \ . 

· 

(b)(3) NatSecAct station provided tra ining to the guards on how to handle, 
move, restrain pris oners, lock them in cel l s ,  and h.andle 
them s a fel .and s ecurelv. 

(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

·(b)(1) 

(b)(3) NatSecAct (b )(3) NatSecAct 

�---------' 
Between August and September 2002, 

Headqµarter� was able to ma e arrangements w i th the BOP to 
:provi de trainin: in I . I guard 
· force atl I On I I S eptember 2 0 0 2 ,  I J ca�led 

·Headquarters an noted tll:ai they looke?- forward t(-b)(i) . 
·receiving a t ime line for the TDY of BOP personnel

(b)(3) N 
· 

S 
(b)(3) C IAAct 

· (b)(3) N atSecAct at ecAct 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 

20,,.__ ____ "'--Ju
�

n 2002 (Attachment 17) · (b ) (  1) 
-r 21 ul2002 (Attachment 18) (b)(3) C IAAct 

ug 2002 (Attachment 19) ( (b)(1 ) . ) 23
�
ln
-
t
-
erv
-

1
-
ew
-

o
�
f -'-'-""------; Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )(3) C IAAct . 5 (b ) (6) 
(b) (3) NatSecAct 

\ ' 
'POP SECRE'f//}{1(b)(7)(c) 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C06555318 
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· 'i'OP 6:!3GFl8"P//)(1 
� .. ... 

·' ' 

(�)(1 )..) SUBJECT: 
(b )(3) NatSecAct . , Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN (b  )( 1 )  

(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 )  

. 
indl�at�ng "so�n�r is .. b�24 On D Nov�mber 20 0 :(b){1LL 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
BOP officers arrived in L__J and·. trained the (b)(3) NatSecAct 
guards from I I November·. BOP instructors .trained L_J . 

c:==Jguards in restraint tec�niques, escort procedures, . 
security .checks, entrance._I)roc(:)dures, cell searches, watch 

(b)(1) . 
calls, and patdqwn s.earches . .' BOP also made a number of 

(b)(3) CIAAct 1reco

. 

mmendations to improve the security of th.e prison. 2s 
(b)(3) NatSecAct I · 

(b )(G) . . 
( b  )( 1 )1==:=:· =---------;::::====='-, (b)(7) .(c) 

6. ·-t'I'S+ (b)(3) NatSecAct'ison guards are 
highly 

ersonnel. 
( b )( 1 ) 

. (b)( 1 )  
'-H-,,--.----�---(b)(3) NatSecAct. __________ ______,, 

(b)(3) NatSecAct do. whatever they are told to o by 
I lpersonne , . and ·often'will not do anything until 

(b)(1), ·· -. · · told to do so by personn�l.29 All activiti�s t;hat 
(b)(3) CIAAct .Station officers wish to undertake at the facility are 
(b)(3) NatSecAct . . fully supported and rapidly carried out· by the guard force. 
(b)(6) · · I I s:tated, that al though they will .do anythi'ng he asks 
(b)(7)(c) ·of them,. nothing prevents the. guards from taking 

independent action. If a guard noticed that a prisoner was 
palcL he could give the prisoner a bl�pket.30 That said, 
L____ J believed that the 
guards wou1a�aKe noi:r:n:::-:d:r:e:-=cc:e=nccod'-=-e=n=t-a�c=t�l�on at -.that r i son 
without permission �rorn 

(b )( 1) . I . I the CJ'�g_u_a _r _d_ s--t---'---�d� o- e-s-no_ t_w_. a_n_t_a _n_ y---' 
(b)(3) NatSecAct .of the prisoners to die, no matter how good cir bad �hey 

(b)( 1 )  
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct' 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

·( 

are. He
.

told the guards that this (ensuring the.�ell being 
of the prison.er) was their :i:esponsibili ty. 31 Accordin'g to 

j f station has recently m�d� an effort to instill this 
responsibility in the guard force by appointitig one of the 

(b )( 1) 
-(b)(3) CIAAct_� 

(b)(3) NatSecAct (Attachment 20 )  
(Attachment 21) 

L-,2�6 �ln�te-rv�le_w_o�---.._,· "-.Nov 2002 !Attachment 13) 
27 \ntervlew of · 

Dec 2002 (Attachment 1 5) 
(b)(1 )in?()()? !Attachment 11 ) 

�29-ln�t-erv_l_ew-ot(b)(3) CIAAci-- Nov 2002(Attachment13) 
30 lnterview·a1(b)(3) NatSecActNov 2002 (Attachment 13) 
a1 Interview o1(b)(6) Nov 2002 (Attachment 22) 

(b)(7)(c) 6 
TOP SEGfli89:'//J& 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C06555318 
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(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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'£or' SECRE'f//}H 

-' • 1 SUBJECT: t-s'") Death Inyesti'gation - Gul RAHMAN (b)( 1 )";.;: . .-. .. 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b ) (  1 )  
(b)(3) Nat.SecAct 

(b) (1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b  )(3) NatSecAct 
(b  )(6) 

. 

(b)(7)(c) . 

(b  )( 1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) l . · 
(b)(7)(c) ,.. 

(b ) (  1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

guards res onsible for· detainee safety.· This particular 
guard, 

i.--
---� ....... ·has '.been· identif�(h)(1)Y Statipn perso�2nel 

and BOP per.sonne a� one of the best(b)(3) NatSecActuards. 
I 

7. fS1 Heating and· cooling are pro.blematic a.t the 
prison facility. · There is no insulation in t�e building 
.and no central heating. or cooling . I I 

The facility is hot in the' 
'-----�-��-�c---�---' summer and cold in the winter; There are. ceiling fans that 
h�lp cool the facili t'y in the summ

.
er . According to I I 

in late Septernber.2002, Stati on purchased 10 electric 
heaters that were 'oelivered ·in early October. 2002. Five of 
the electric heaters were placed in the administrative 
section of the p·rison and five were placed in the guard 
'shacks. They could not place an of the electrical heaters 

. in the risoner . housin . area 

In.mid-Octobe� �002, five gas heaters 
were purchas ed an delivered sometime short1y thereafter. 
All five gas heaters were placed in the g6ard towers.

· In 
early November 2002, five more gas heaters were purchased 
and delivered at a l ater date. These heat�rs were pl aced 

in the housing area of the prison. ,TJ;iese
. 

heaters were �n 
place prior to RAHMAN's · death . On LJ November 2002, the 
day of RAHMAN's death, five more gas heaters were ordered 

r..anf set up in ·the housing area circa D November 2002. On 
L_J November .2 002, 15 more gas heaters were orde

.
red and ·set 

. UP sometime in December: 2002.. Some were used to replace 
·bi:-oken heaters. 34 According to! · I there are · 

approximately 15 gas heaters currently.set up in the 
prisoner . housing area . " I ] has now placed a 
therl'!'-om.eter inside the housing area 

a21nterview of[(b )( 1) Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) 
33 lntervlew of (b)(3) C IAAct Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) 
34 Lotus Note frc(b )(3) NatSecAct Nov 2002 (Attachment 23) 
as Interview o((b)(6) Dec 2002 (At.tachment 15) 

(b)(7 )(c) 7 
'fori ��cr<"t r//x! 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/30 C06555318 
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(b)(1). 
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(b)( 1 )  
(b)(3) CIAAct (b)(3) CIAAct 

(b)(3) NatSecAct. 
(b  )(6) . 

(b )(3) NatSecAct IOP 5'.l!:C�l!:l'//X!. 
,•' 

(b)(7)(c) 

·:>.:j) SUBJECT; +st Death Inves t igation - Gul RAHMAN 

(b)(1) . stated that he has requested 
(b)(3) CIAAct .___,t�h-a-:-t---:-t�he-.g-u�a '--r-od,---s-re-c-'-o- r-d�t�h__je temperatures. in the ho using are a  
(b)(3) NatSecAct ea ch day. J6 

· 8. · rS1 Fro m the concep t i on of J · I 
Hea dqufirters and / / .station have made efforts ..  to ensure· 

(b)( 1 )  the phys ica·1 he al th of the detainees. On il1une 2 002, . 
(b)(3) NatSeoAct I ] station cab l e d  Headquarters arid ,c.hr�- rho 

.
fl"\llo wing :  

(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )(1 ) 
(b ),

(3) NatSecAct 

( 

\ 
' •  : 

. .. · 

�. --. . 
. 

. . . (b)(3) NatSecAct 
· "Station can s upport initial, .·non-einer enc medical 

e f station medics. 
(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

station has . 
reque sted tha t ·a 'small medical room-be cons t ructed I I � so that . deta inees may receive ·medical care 
�v-i._a _v_i_s_i_t-in- g-----"medical per�onnel w ithin the fa ci.l i t y ."37 : 

(b  )( 1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
( b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

36 lntervlew· o 19 Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) 
a .-------'-�-un�20�0��achment 24) 
a ul 2002 (Attachment 25) 

8 (b)(1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct' 

'3:'0P SElCRE'.l'//}H 
' 

(b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b  )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C065553 1 8  
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(b)(1) ..... 
(b)(3) NatS.ecAct 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) . 
(b)(7)(c) 

SUBJECT: 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C0655531 8  

'i'OP'88CRE'£'//X1 .. ' 
(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) CIAAct 

.ts7 · . Death Investigation - Gui RAHMAN (b)(3) NatSecAct 

'(b)(1) 
. .  

Note: CIA wa's ·already fundlng the. operation of t(b)(3) NatSecAct 
facility to. include all prison expenses . 

. · 1:0. t&l According to · a CIA medicrl 
officer TDY to J � ·at the end of August, 2002, I ·  
had agreed to · provide physician to examine the 

(b)(1) prisoners .. ll:s of 0.Novemb er 2002,�as failed to do 
(b)(3) CIAAct . so. As a result,. Station assumed bY-aer'ault the .. 
(b)(3) NatSecAct . · responsi

. 
bili ty of takirtg care of the prisoner'h::ealth crare 

. needs. [ lst��ed that he.�irst visited Jon · . 'llNovember 2002, shortly after his arrival for is second �Y to! \ c====1stated that if a prisoner 
(b)(1) becomes ill,· he .and another Statio� medic go toJ 
(b)(3) NatSecAct and treat them. stated that his guicte±I+-r=n=-=e=-=s�f.-.,-o=r� 

(b)(1)i'.' . .. :· 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) . 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1) 

treating the prisoners were �ague and·needed.to be further defined. \ ! stated that he ,,, , .,,,, t-h.. · · 
of the Office of Mi§dical Services . (b)(3) CIAAct 
(OM� I and asked for guidance . was told, "the 
Hi�pocratic Oath states· that if so�eone is sick, you treat 
t-},.,..,,. fl 40 (b)(1) . 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
· . . . (b)(3) NatSecAct 

· .
1 1 . t"S'i · I I datectO November 2002,. . 

. · · 
provides a detailed outline of Station's medical support to 
�he det�i.nees at C \ '.I'he cable is quoted below in 
l. ts entirety

(b)(1 
)'----� 

SUBJECT: (b)(3) CIAAct 
DETAINEES (b)(3) NatSecAct 

.REF: NONE 

TEXT: 

STATION MEDICAL SUPPORT TO 

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

1. ACTION REQUIRED: NONE, .F.YI ONLY. 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct (b )(1) 

·:.· ...... 
,============:----Au 2002 Attachment 26) 
40 lnte1Yiew of Nov 2002 (Attachment 27) 

�----� 9 . 
'!:'OP SECREl'f//Xl 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

I\ ;J.. -1:- ('O 
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IOP SECREr//Xl 

s_·(b)(1f'!: . tsi Death Investigation Gul RAHMAN 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 )  -2. I ]STATION MEDICAL. PERSONNEL PROVIDE SUPPORT TO 
(b)(3) NatSecAct CIA RENDITIONS .AND ! 

I =1_pE TA'--::I::-N= E= Ec--=-PR=o-=-G=RAM=-=-:cc:-:sc-.-. ,....I ---..,...,IM_,,E"""'D,...,.I�C�A- L-PE_R_s_ o_N _N _E_L__J 
(b)(3) CIAAct · ARE A_LL L� PHYSICIAN ,ASSISTANTS OR NURSE 

PRACTIT10NERS. ONE TO TWO PERSONNEL ARE ASSIGNED 
(b)(1) . TDY AT ANY' GIVEN. TIME . . . 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) 
3. · I I STANDARD. RENDJT ION PROCEDURE REQUIRES . THAT 

ONE MEDICAL OFFICER PARTICIPATE !N ALL RENDITIONS. THE 
(b)(3) NatSecAct REASON FOR THIS IS THREEFOLD. FIRST, TO ENSURE THAT THE · 

DET.AINEE DOES NOT HAVE ANY ITEMS CONCEALED ON HIS· PERSON 
WHICH MIGHT 'BE USED AS A WEAPON (THROUGH 

'
A COMPLETE 'FULL·­

BqDY AND CAVITY SEARCH). SECOND, TO DETERMINE THE I�ITIAL 
MEDICAL CONDITION OF THE DETAINEE; AND THIRD, TO STABILIZE 
THE CONDITION OF THE DETAINEE DURING THE RENDITION -
INCLUDING SEDATION

. 
IF NECESSARY. 

. ' 
·., ...... : .... 

) . 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

�-----------__j STATION MEDICAL PERSONNEL ALSO 
PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTAL MEDICAL SUPPORT ON AN AS-NEEDED BASIS. 
THIS TYPICALLY CONSISTS OF .TREATMENT FOR ACUTE MEDICA.L 
PROBLEMS AND FOLLOW�UP TREATMENT FOR PRE�EXISTING MEDICAL 
CONDITIONS, 

10 
TOP eEGRS'l'//Xl 
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'£OP SECRE'3?//lH 

,., SUBJECT: t&) Death ·Investigation· - Gul RAHMAN '·'\\,: .. :: 

(b) ( 1 )  
( b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b  )( 1 )  
(b) (3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 )  (b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct _____ (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct (b)(3) NatSecAct 

THE 
LAST·�'-ilL.l.u:;iR ASSISTANCE VISIT TO WAS CONDUCTED 
FROM NOVEMBER 2002. THE NEXT PLANNED VISIT WILL BE. 

WEEK OF NOV.EMBER 2002. BASED ON THE LAST �----=-----'--_..,------' 
�---� VISIX, FOLLOW...,(JP. CARE WAS PROVIDED Tb SEVERAL' 

INMATES 

(b )( 1 ) 

FROM [ j NOVEMBER· 2002. 
. 

(b)(1.) . 
·-· (b)( 1 )  __ . ___ 

. --(b)(3) C IAAct-1 
(b)(3) C IAAct (b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 ) DURING 'THE MOST RECENT (b)(3) C IAAct SCHEDULED VISIT TO DETAINEES WHO PREVIOUSLY (b) (3),Nat�ecAct 
. .  IDENTIFIED THEMSELVES AS DIABETICS WERE TESTED FOR BLOOD 

' : · 

(b)( 1 ) . 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

· ( b) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

. SUGAR LEVEL'S (WHICH WERE NORMAL) r DETAINEE WITH A 
VARIETY OF PRE-EXISTING �ONDITIONS ·�AS PRESCRIBED FJVE 
DIFFERENT MEDICATIONS, AND . SEVERAL DETAINEES WERE . 
PRESCRIBED MILD PAIN RELIEVERS. URINE TESTING OF THE. 

INMATES INDICATED ALL OF THE DETAINEES WERE 
RECEIVING SUFFICIENT NOURISHMENT AND HYDRATION. ALL OF THE 
DETAINEES AT (WITH THE EXCEPTION OF GUL RAHMAN) 
HAVE. BEEN FULLY COOPERATIVE WITH THE MEDICAL PERSONNEL IN 
RESPONDING TO QUESTIONS ABOUT THEIR HEALTH AND WE�FARE. 
THE ONE EXCEPTION, GUL RAHMAN, .WOULD' ONJ;,y STATE THAT 
"THANKS TO GODr ALL IS WELL'' IN RESPONSE TO. QUESTIONING. 

' . . 

12. ·rs:; Additionally, prison·ers with signific.ant 
(b)( 1 )  health .'problems are not accE)p�ed at I I During a 
(b)(3) C IAAct lpropoj8d rendition of a detainee with a \ \ condition, 
(b)(3) NatSecAct Station provided·the following guidance: "If Subject 

. does have a significant I ] condition, Subject sho�ld not 
· . · be transferred to I I· Appropr:late specialized 

(b)( 1 ) medical care is not available No 

(b)(3) NatSecAct unlawful enemy combatant with pre-existing medical 
conditions can be brough.t to [(b)( 1 ) I If there is reason 

(b)(3) C IMct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct (b )( 1 )  

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
11 

'fOP. OECRE'f//Xl· 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C0655531 8 
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··�.' ..... 

(b)(1) (b)(3) CIAAct (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) (b)(3� NatSecAct ': } 
(b)(1) (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) (b)(3) C IAAct (b )(3) NatSecAct (b)(6) . 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b)(1) (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) (b)(3) C IAAct (b )(3) NatSecAct 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/30 C06555318 

't'OP OBCRB't'//}{1 

SUBJECT: � Death Investigation - <;Jul RAHMAN 

to believe that Subject has (b)(1 )/ condition , he should be 
transferred I (b)(3) NatSecAct I . 
TREATMENT OF PRISONERS 

13. · \Si L I was constructed as a result. of 
.shortcomin s in the·handlin of .detainees 

(b)(1) (b)(3) CIAAct (b )(3) NatSecAct (b)(6) (b )(7)( c) 

(b )( 1 ) (b)(3) CIAAct (b )(3) NatSecAct 

·was de.signer! +-o · .__i _s _o�l-a t_ e_a_n-Cd�'e_n_h_a_n _c _e_c _o_n_t_ r _o _l_ o_v
JL e_r_t_h_e_p_r

__J
i saner S O 4 2 (b )( 1 ) . . (b)(3) N.atSecAct 

1 4. +s-l [ I a Officer.1 is · 

responsible for detainee affairs at Station, and .is 
viewed by St�tion management and pers<fllil-ie as the �site 
manager." C ==i arrived in on_LJ August 2002 . .  
Prior to his arrival in did not know he would 
be respon�ible for detainee· affairs. st�ted that he 
learned that he would have this r�sponsibili t ¥------i · 

approximately three days after his arrival in � 
I lhad no prior experience in interrogation or . prison 

op�rations prior to his arrival in I I aside from four 
days .as· a detainee durin Survival, _!;_vasion; Resist ance, 
Esca e SERE training '-------�-----------' According to this training provided 

m wit some . understanding as to how prisoners would react 
. to various handling, treatment,. and interrogation methods. 
'--------' was approximately one month short of being · 
operational at the . tim� of arrival. In addition . 
to assuming control over the final construction details of 

I !was also responsible for cooidinating �i-n_t _e _r_ r_o _g _a�uons I =1 and coordinating renditions of 
high and medium value terrorist targets throughout (b)(1) In conjunction with his �-(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)1(-1)-�Oct2002 (Attqchmen.t 28) 
(b )(3) C IAAct__JApr 2002 (Attachment 29� 2 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 'l'Oli' �ECRE'I'//>El 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/30 C06555318 
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(b) ( 1  ) '.:. ... 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct · 

(b)(6) . 
(b) (7)(c) 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 ) . 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3 ) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7) (c) 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1 ) 
(b) (3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b )( 1 )' 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6)\ . . . 
(b)(7)(c)"' 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/�0 C0655531 8 
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SUBJECT: (b)( 1 )  Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

duties asl l"sit� manager:,"! lwas responsible 
for devising the operating procedures for! l Thi=se 
procedures concerned the handling and treatment of 
prisoners and the operation of th� �acility.43 

15. · ts-) Jqhn B. Jessen (known by the name Bruce), a . . . 
Psychologist who works for CIA as an independen.t 
contractor, and is involved in the'use of enhanced 
interrogation techniques with high value targets, spent 
two and a half weeks ·at I I from �arlf-to mil-
November 2002. Jessen worked directly. with .on · 
RAHMAN' and other detainees· at Jessen has a 
Ph.J:), in .CliniC'al Psychology, and spent 2 0  years on'active 
duty with the US Air ·Force as a Psychologist. A,fter his · 
retirement.· from the Air Force, Jessen spent eight· years as 
a DO� civilian Psyc�ologist. During his tenure with the 
Air Force · anc.i DOD, Jessen work�.d on. captivity related 
issues·. While on active duty, he served as a Psychologist 
with the Joint Personnel Recdvery.Agency. While employed 
as a civilian with D6D, Jessen was the �enior Psychologist 
;for the SERE program. .�Jessen was able to observe 

· 

operations at I ] and had discussions with I 1 · 
regarding methods of handling, treating, and interro

r

uns • 

I prisoners. .Jessen also made :some recommendations ·to 

Q

i ave oper:ations at the facility. Jessen state. 

s ed as being very bright, motivated, and · did

g

·reat job setting up Jessen . 

possessing goo ·intuition. Jessen said/ I was doing a 
great job with the guard. force . . I was very level 
headed and acted in a measured manner. Jessen said the 
atmosphere of the facil.i ty was 'excel�ent fo.r the type of 
prisoners kept there - "nasty, but safe." Jessen conuner:ited 
that 'although I I had never worked in this line of . 
�usiness prior to arriving in[ \ he �id not see any 
�hiccups" in security or prisoner safety. Jessen conunented 
that he woul� .be p'leased to work with I Jin the future, 
and bel j ev

j

d. that I I should be a member of �
b)(1) \ 

43 Interview of Dec 2002 (Atlachment 15) 
44 lntervlew of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan'2003 (Attachment 30) . 13 

�OP S&GRB'f//Hl 
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(b) (1L .. . .. ; 
(b) (3) C IAAct 
(b) (3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

, · · 

•(t,!-' · 

Approved for Release : 2016/09/30 C06555318,--------------

'i'OP S:SCRS'I'//lH 

SUBJECT: ("5/ Death Invest i g a t i on - Gu l RAHMAN 

16, � Altho ugh I I.does· not have a writte n  
set of Standard Ope rating Procedure& (a flaw noted b y  
Jessen), I J has· establi�he� a standard method of 
operat i on . For security reasons, prisoners are brought to 
the facility w i th the ir · hands and f e e t  shackled· . 
Bl indfo lds are, p l aced av

.
er their e yes and a hood . i s pl aced 

ove·r the ir he ads. Ear plugs are a lso p l aced .in their ears ... 

This is dcnie so that p r isoners have no knowledge of where 
they are being hous.ed, cannot hear what is being. said 
a round· them, and have rio �de a  if the y  .are alone or w ith· 
o ther prisoners . Add i t i onally, it preven.ts. any fo rm o( 
c ommunication betwe en.prisoners . Prisoners are handled by 
guards in complete silence. Hand signals -are used ·by the 
guards to communica t e  with each othe r . ·pr isoners a re 
dressed in sweatsu i t s. and adu l t  di apers. The diap e rs a r e  
used. f o r. sanitary r e asons dur�ng transportat ion, and a s  a 
means to humiliate ·.the pr isone r .  y;/hen prisoners a r e  
del�vered t o  the i r  6ell, o n e  hand o r  foo� i s '  sha ckled to 
the wall. This is done for the sa f e t� of the.guard; 
La ter, the manner in which a �risoner is shackled is based 

. on his ie�e l of cciope r ation and the dang�i he present� t o  . 
the guards . However, all prisoners are shack�ed i n  some 
manner. If they are not shackled t o  the wa l l, their hands 
a n d  fe e t  may b� shackled. I f · a prisoner is uncooperative, 
o r  presents a signi f i c ant phys i cal threa t  to the guards, h e  
may be shackled i n  a "short chain" posi t i on . This method 
was taught to the guards by BOP instructors as a safer 

.a l te rnat ive t o  ho g-tying prisoners.· Ho g-tying prisoners 
has resulted in a number o f  deaths in the US , a nd the 
'"short chain" method is sa fer for the pr�son e rs ·whi l e  still 
providing a higher degree of safety and 'securi ty for the 
guards. · In the "short chain�' method, the prisoner's hands 
are shack l e d  together as are ,his fe et. The n  a sho rt c�a i ti  
is us�d t o  shac kle t h e  hands t o  t h e  f e e t .  Th is keeps a 
pr isoner's h and shackled within severa l inches o f  his f e e t . 

·The pri�one r's feet are then shac kled to the w a l l .  This · 

provide s f o r  the maximum degr e e  o f  cont r o l  over the 
prisoner whi l e  a llowing for prisoner safety.�5 

45 Interview of [ (b) ( 1) =:Jbec 2002 (Attachment 15) 
(b) (3) C IAAct 14 
(b) (3) NatSecActCf'OP. SECR:�'f//X1 
(b) (7)(c) 
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(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b) (3) NatSecAct. 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7 )(c) 

. (b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7) (c) ·i 

/ 

, _____ 
(b ) ( 1  ) __ 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C06555318 (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) TOP aiGRJi,;'.f//Xl 

· (b)(7)(c) 

SUBJECT: ts-) Death Investigation Gul RAHMAN 

17. �) Prior to the guards' departure from the 
tell, the hood, blindfold, and aar plugs are takeri from th� 
prisoner. �risoners are housed in ·tdtal darkness. I I stated that this is done for a couple of reasons. . . 
stated that he wanted.to disorient risoners sO the����� 
know if it was da ht. 

Additionally, music is played in the prisoner housing area 
24 hours a day. This is do.ne to pre.vent prisoners from 
conununicatin'g with each other .. 46 

· 18. fS-1 ·Sleep deprivation, is also used to enhance 
successful inte�rogation � The decision to use sleep 
deprivation is �ade by the individual CIA officer who i� 
�orking with a particular prisoner. When sleep deprivation 
is utilized, the.prisoner is ·chain�d by one· ot both wrists. 
to a bar running a.cross the ceilina of the cell. Th.is I 

forces .the prisoner �o stand; I _stated tha� he 
consulted wi�h Jessen and· was told that ho prisoner �hould 
undergo more than 7 2  hours . of sleep deprivation .because . 
lucidity begins to decline and. questioning become 
ina ifective.47 During our interview with Jessen; h� stated 
that sleep deprivattbn could �e used indefinitely �ithout · 

harming the prisoner; however, yo� could not chain him. 
overhead indefinitely. 

. 

19 � t&1 Often, prisoners who possess significant or 
imminent. thr� at informat:i,on are stripped to their diapers 
during interrogation and plao·ed back into their cells 
wearing only diapers. This is done solely to' humiliate the 
prisoner for . interrogation purposes. When the prisoner 
soils a diaper, they a.re changed by the guards. Sometimes 
the guards run out of diapers and the prisoners �re placed 
back in their cells in a hand�rafted diaper secured by duct 
tape. If the guards don't have any available diapers, the 
prisoners are rendered to their cell n�de.48 

46 Interview of · 

Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) 
47 Interview of (b )( 1 )  Dec 2002 '(Attachment 15) 
48 Interview of (b )(3) C IAAct Dec 2002 (Attachment 15) 

(b )(3) NatSecAct · 

· 15 · 
(b)(6) '£OP SEJCRB'fh'Xl 
(b) (7)(c) 
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(b) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1 );'
. 

' 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct · 

(b )( 1) 

Approved for Release: 2016/09/30 C065553181-------------

'f'OF OElCRE.'f//>H 

SUBJECT: �) Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN 

20. ts+ Prisoners' cells are austere. A prisoner 
begins his confinem�nt with nothing in h{s cell except a 
bucket used for human waste. Prisoner� are given rewards 
for cooperation. Rewards can consist of a light, " fqamies" 
for the prisoners' ears (blo.cks o.ut 'the music.), a mat to 
sleep on, extra blanke.ts , etc. .Addi tionally1 . a luxury 'room 
has been built which has a light, a· .tocking ·chair ' a table, 
and car peting . on the floor. Prisoners are n�t pun�shed for 
lack of cooperation. Instead, rewarqs that they have 
received for cooperation are taken 'from them if 'they become 
upcooperat� ve. 4•9 

21. rs-+ When guards move prisoners ·from their cell 
. to the int'errogation

. 
room, usually CJ guards· .enter the·. 

cell. with a flashlight. A h6od· is placed over·the 
prisoner ' s head and he is lead to th� interrqgation room in 
shackles. The guards .do nbt speak to the pri�on�rs and all 
communication between the guards is completed with hand 
signals. Once the detainee is· placed in the interrogation 
room the guards d epart , and.the hood is JJemoved by l I 
pe�sonn�l. Every effort is made to ens�re that the only 
person a detainee communicates with is his CIA 
inte�rogator. so· · 

DEATH OF GUL RAHMAN 

2 2 .  ·W Gul RAHMAN was a Hezbi Islami offici:al f.rom.. 
Wardak province·, Afghanis.tan, who. was known· 

to interact 
with and support Al Qa ' ida . He was known to .b� a close 
associate of Gulb�ddin Hekmatyar and Abu Abd Al-RAHMAN Al­
Najdi. 

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 

' (b)(1) 

(b)(?)(c) 

. . : .  �·· 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 

Jessen stated th�t 
Station 

49 Interview of Dec 2002 (Aitachment 15) 
5o Interview of Dec 2002 (Attachment 15)· 
51 Alec Oct 2002 (At achment 31) · 
s2 Alec Nov 2002 (Attachment 32) 
s3 Nov 2002 (Attachment 33) L_���--' '16 (b)(1) 

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

TOP SBCRE'f//X:l 
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(b )( 1 )  \ (b)(3) NatSecAct 
I 

. . 

' . .. 
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'I'OI? OElCRE':P.//H 1 

SUBJECT: t-5-) Death Investigation· - Gul RAHMAN 
was very optimistic that· they had somebody who was.going to 
have some good information ,54 · 

2 3 .  
· �L RAHMAN · was apprehended .in I5lai;nabad, 

,--'P�a�k�i�s�t=an�o�n�-L__l j--l o�ct�ober 2.0 0 2, durino an earlv mornincr .raid 
(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

Lntervlew of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (A1tachment 30) 

(b)(1) loet 2002 (Attachmer� 3�) 

(b)(3) C IAAct 'for S'BCR:B'f//X1 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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rop SECRE'1'7/Xi 

De'ath Inve s t i qation - Gul R(b)(ff 
_____ _ 

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 

1-----------------�(b)(?)(c)------i 

. .. . .. 

(b) ( 1 ) 
(b) (3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

•• 1 "' 

(b)( 1 )  
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b ) (  1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

2 7 . 0 0 2  
�--- ---�----(b)( 1 ) 

trans ferrina him · to I (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

56 Oct 2002 (Attachment 34) 
57 ov 2002 (Attachment 35) ��------,-------" se Alec Nov 2002 (Attachment 36) · 
s9 Alec Nov 2002 (Attachment 37) 

18  
. TQP SEGRE'±'//Xl 
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(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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SUB.:)'ECT : t5i De a th Inves tigat ;i.on Gul' RAHMAN 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b ) (  1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

2 9 !.  ts7 Later that day, RAHMAN j � !w ere flown 
from c= µyhere they were su s e quent l y  ::ansferref to I J" Upo� RJ\JIMJ\N' s ax r i v a l  at J he was given a phys i c a l  examinat�on a nd a l l  of 

s .  p ers onal c l.othe·s and e ff e c t s  were r emoved . · He w a s  
. 

. . d r e s s e d  in ·st andard · pr i �on g a rb· and .placed i n  . a  -s ingle 
c e l l . 62 j / . des cr ibed the s t anda·�d p r i soI1 garb as a 
swe at shirt and swe a t p a�t s . RAHMAN w a s  a l s o  wearing an 
ad� i t di aper that w� s p l a c�d 6n hi� in Thi i is 
done b e c aus e p r i son�rs are no t 'a l l owed to u s e  bath+o.o� 
f ac i l i t i e s  on the a i rp l ane dur i ng r endit i on, and i at e r  as a 

. means of humi l i a t ion . · Acco.rdin_g t o  s t a ndard ope r a t i ng 
procedur e s , one o·f RAHMAN '  s hands · or feet would h ave been· 
s h a c k l ed to the wa l l  when he w a s  p l aced in h i s  ce l l . 

· 

Acco rdin
'
g to the{h:s i cjl examina tion o f  'RJ\JIMJ\N . 

tqok pl a.ce . in I \. s t a t ed that the r e  are a . 
number o f  r e a s ons for the p ysical exami nat i o n .  One r e a son 

. is s o  th at S t a t ion can conduc t a bo�y cavi ty s e a r ch to 
ensu r e  the pr' fs one r is not carrying a w e apon or s ome o ther 
s ubs t a n c e . The s e cond reason is s o  that S t ation can ' ensure 
that the p r i s on�r is in good. enough condi tion to trave l and 
be housed at c· 1· L a s t � y ,  I I indi c a ted that the 
phys i c a l  ex ami nat ion s erves to ·do cument if a p r i soner . has· 
been be aten or traumati zed . The person conducting the 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct . 6oj Nov 2002 (Attachment 38) (b)(3) NatSecAct 61 j'lov 2002 (Attachment 39) (b)(G) 62L =Nov 2002 (Attachment 40) . (b)(?) (c) (b) ( 1 )� . 19 

(b)(3) C IAAct T<JP SEGRE'f//JE1 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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, (b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
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(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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. (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

ph¥si c a l  ex am would , �ot �  �uch· obs e ivat ioris . I . J �lso 
i ndicat e d  'that the p r i soner would . be pho tographed . A 
s e arch o f  cab l e  traf f i c  r e l ated to RAHMAN foun d  no . record 
of any r eporting indi cat ing that . any i nj uries . o r  hea lth 
'condi tions were ·noted. . I I s t ated that they 'keep n; 
medical · r e.cords' on the pri soners. and the 'dig i t a l  

� photographs t aken· o f  RAHMAN at . rendi t i on have l ong b e en 
overw r i t t en . 63 6 4 · · 

3 0 . � According to Je�s en,  he was at l �n 
e a r l y  Nqvemb e r  2 0 0 2 ,  in c::::onj unct i on .with 'the · interrogations 
of a few other prisoners . .  Al though Jes s en ' s reco l lections 
wer& fu z z y, J� S s en r e c a l l ed th�t he might �ave . b e en pres ent 
during the f i r s t  iiot,:rooatt°ri 6t ' RAHMAN. at I I .  Jessen· r e cal l ed that approached him, · and they 
d i s cus s e d  s t rateg·i � s  o us e during h i s  interrogation . 
Je s s en s t at e d  ·that he be l i.eves I I conducted the fi rs t 
interro g a t i o n ,  ahd h� wat ched f rbm behirid the l ight� . 
Je s sen s ta t e d  tha t  they · t a l ked a f t e rwards and col laborated 
on some app roaches he mi,ght �ant .to t ake . 65 . 

. " 
3 1 . AA . C

�ble tr
.
a f�ic"

·
r�f l�c t s  �h at on Oand (b)( 1 ) IC]Novembe r  2 0 0 2 , I �J'.l.d . Je s s en inte rrogated RAHMAN .  

(b)(3) N.atSecAct The cab l e  goes on to · s tate that desp'i t e  4 8  hours o f  s l eep 
depriva t i o n ,  audi tory· overload, tptal darkne s s ,  i s o l at io n ,  
a · co ld showe r ,  and ·rough treatment , .  RAHMAN · maintained a 

(b)( 1 ) h i gh int e rro�afion r e s i s t ance pos tu�e and contintied to deny 
(b)(3) NatSecAct that he was RAHMAN, de sp i t e overwhe l+tlin g  evi dence · t o  the 

contrar y . Hi s r e s i s t ance pos ture sugge sted a s ophi s t icated 
l eve l of r e s i s tance train�ng . .The cab l e  c i t e d  several 
examp l e s  of hi s int e r rogation r e s i st ant behavior : ·  

(b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

o Rema ined s te adfast in outright den i a l s  ( igno'r e d  
obvi ous fact s ) . 

o Was unre spon
.
s i ve to p rovo cat ion , 

o C l a imed i nab i l it y  t o  'th i nk due to cond i t i ons 
( co ld )  

o Compla i ned abo1,1t p o o r  treatment . .  
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(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 )  

o c ompl a'ined about the violation o f  his human 
r i ght s . . 

o Remained .consistently unemotional,  calm, and 
compo sed . · . · 

o B latant l y l i ed.  whi l e  attempt ing' to appear . 
s incer e  iri &is desire to poope rate . · 

o .  Consiit ent ly u � ed hi� cover s tory , 
9 Di sp l ayed no anxiety ( c'alml:y picked at h i s  

s kin/na i � s  dur ing . cori frox:i.tations wi t h  damning 
ev idence again st him . 

o Was unf a z e d  by phys i c a l  an d ps ycho logi ca l confront at ions . 66  

32. .  tfr) Cable . traffic re flects that ·s l eep 
depr ivat ion f o r  RAHMAN began a lmo s t  immedi at e l y . af t e r  his · 
a rr ival at Jes s en stated .th.at he bel i eved that 
R.AHMAN' s s l eep depr ivat ion s tarted . rrom the beginning , 
According t o  RAHMAN' s c l o the s .  wer.e . t a ken from h im · 
at t h i s  poi_nt , . and he wa!3 left wearing ' a di ap er , · · Dur ing 
the pe r iod of s l eep deprivation, �' s arms .wer.e 

(b)(3) C IAAct . 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) . 
(b)(7) (c) .1 

. shackled to a bar that ran ' be tween the wal l's o f  · the cel l .· 
This p r evented"RAHMAN from s i tt�ng . d�wn .. 67 · 68 

3 3 . 1-5-l ' Drina :he fir st few 'di>ys o f  Rl\HMAN '  s 
(b)( 1 ) incarce rat i o� a t  j cable . t r�f f ic a l �o ref� ects 
(b)(3) CIAAct tha t he re c e 1�ed a col . showe r . Dur 7ng our 1nt erv.i e w with 

(b) (3) NatSecAct . II he in�i·cate d that. RAHMAN rece1�ed a co ld showe r 
. . · �e the water heater was no� · work1ng . Jes s en s t at ed 

(b)( 1 ) . 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

that he was deiiberately given a cold shower as a 
dep r'i vat ion t e chni que . Cab le traffic tends to s,uppo rt ' 
Je s s en ' s s t a t ement s . Je s s en stated that after RAHMAN 
rece ived the co l d  showe+ , he � aw -� st andi'ng with the 
guards . Je s s en s ta ted that RAHMAN was shiver i ng and 
showing e a r l y  's i gns o f .  hypothe rmia . Jes s en ins tructed ,the 
guards ·to prov'ige RAHMAN with a b l anke t ,  whi ch t{ley 419- . 69 1 0 

3 4 . +ei C ab l e . t ra f f i c  a l so r e f l e c t s  that dur i ng hi s  
f i r s t  two da y s  o f  i pcarc erat ion, � underwent · � rough . 

&{ ____ ]Nov 2002 (Attachment 33) · 
67 Interview of John B. Jessen. ·9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30) 6a Interview on pee 2002 (Attachment 1 5) . .  
6? Interview o� . _pee 2002 (Attachment 1 5) 
10. Interview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (.Attachment 30) 

. 2 1 
TOP 813GREi'f//Xl 
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(b )( 1 ) .. . 
(b) (3) C IAAct' · 
(b)(3) NatSecAci !OP SECREl//Xl 
(b)(6)., " · ' '\ 
(b)(?)(c) j 

+\.'.'.{ SUBJECT ;  ffi"') Death I nve s t i gation � Gul RA.HMM. 

(b) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) ' 

treatment . "  j ! s t ated that they QCcas ional l y · pushed 
and shoved . RAHMAN whi l e  he had .a hood over . his head to · 
d i s or i ent him . and s care him . Jessen described wi tne s s in g  
what h e  termed " a  rough takedown . "  Je:;; s en s tated t hat when 
a detainee is s tr6ng �nd res i l i ent , you have to es tabl i s� · 
control o r . you are not going to g e t · anywhe re. .  So . you try 
d i f ferent' t e chni que s to . try to get him to open µp . One of 
them is rou�h threateni�g t re atment . The' tre atment i s  (b) (?)(c) 

. n ever to the . po int th.a t  you hurt the prisoner phy s i c a l 1y ,  
y o u  s i�pl y  want t o  ins t i l l  f e a r  and despair i n  the 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) N atSecAct' 

:1 ;1 . 
(·� . .. . -.. / 

(b)( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b)(?)(c) · 

. . ..... ·: \ ·  .... I ..... ;�'' 

prisoner·. c ame u� wi th the idea o f  the h�rd 
t akedown and a s ked Jes s en for his thoughts . Whi l e  Je s s en 
h a s  not used .this "techn i que at fac i l it i e s  at whi ch· he has 
worked, and had never s e en one co�ducted, he. thought i t  was 

· wo rth trying . According to Je s s en ,  there we:e . 
approx imate l y  [:==J CIA. o fficers from the I � I t e am .  

· Each one had a .ro l e  during the t akedown and i t  was 
thoroughly pl anned and · rehearsed . They opened the door o f  
RAHMAN '  s· ce l l  and rushed i n  screaming· and ye l-l i ng f o r  him 
' t o  " get down . "  The y  dragged him out s i de ,  cut . o f f  h i s  . 
c lothes and s e cured him with Myl a r  t ape . Th� y covered h i s  
head with a hood · and r a n  him up and down a l o n g  corridor 
a dj ac ent to his c e l l .  They s l apped hi� an� punch e d  him 
s ever a l  t imes . Jes s en st at�d that although i t  was obvi ous 
they were not t rying to .hit him as hard as they could, a 
c o upl.e o f  time s the punches we r e  'fo r c e ful. . As they ran 'him 
�d ong the cor�i do r ,  a coup l e  of t imes he f e n  and they 
dragged h im through the dirt ( the floor outs i de of the 
c'e l i s  is dir t )  : RAHMAN did acquire a · numb e r  o f· abrasions 
oq his f a c e , legs , and hands , but· nothing that r e qu i r e d  
�edica l · attent ion . ( Th i s · may account f o r  t h e  abr a s ipn$ 
found on RAHMAN' s , body a f t e r  hi s death . RAHMAN had a . 

. n umbe r  o f  sur face abr.a s ions on :hi s  shoulde r s , pelvi s , ·  arms , 
l e g s ,  and f a c e . )  At this po.int,  RAHMAN was returned t o  h i s  
c e l l  and secured . · ..Je s s en stated that ! I may have . 
spoken to RAHMAN for a few moments ,  but he did not kno w  
what � s a i d . Jes sen s tated that after s omething l i ke 
t h i s  ��� inte rrogators sho u l d  speak to the p r i s on e r  t o  
" g i ve them s omething 'to think about . " 71 7 2  

7 1 Interview ofl · Joec 2002 (Attachment 1 5 (b)( 1 ) 
72 Interview ofJohn B. Jessen, 9 Jan .2003 (Attachment 30) (b)(3) CIAAct 

2 2  (b)(3) NatSecAct 
TOP SECRE'f'//}H (b)(6) 

(b)(?)(c) · 
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(b )( 1\ ,;,::: SUBJECT : � Death I nve s t i gation - Gul RAHMAN (b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct (b)(3) NatSecAct 

I 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b) (3) C IAAct . 
(b) (3) NatSe?Act 

. 3 5 .  � . _ onD Novemb er 2 002 , J !s tation f0 rwarded 
a cab l e  to . Headquarters · indi cat ing that to da te , RAHMAN had 
provi ded no information to hi s interrogato r s . He s t i l l · 
r e fu s e d  ·t� admit h i, s  t rue name was qul RAHMAN • . He app e a r ed 

· s omewhat fat i gued r e l at ive to his· appearance upon arrival 
at and· rema in�d r e s o lut e l y .def�ant as · 
inte rrogators attempted' to obtain' information from him . 
Station b e l i eved that . phys i6al pres sure · was uni ikel y to 
change RAHMAN' s ·at t i tude ;· but �lternative holo ic 

.---"'�CQ..QJ.!.±c=_M!Q,..'L__J,,1,j:uLJ::l._.mo re success_._ 
(b )( 1 )  
(b) (3) NatSecAct 

( b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct . 3 6 . �) On November 2002 , Station O f f i c e r s  

( b)(3) NatSecAct I I Je s s en,, again me t 
(b)(e) with . RAHMAN .. " RAHMAN  a spent the d�ys . s inc;:e hi s l a s t  
(b)(?)( ) s e� s ion with S.tat ion o f f i c e r s  in cold C::0!1-di t ions wi th 

.. c 
min ima l food or . s 1 e·ep . RAHMAN appea red incoher ent for 

.., ) portions· of this. s e s s ion, ·but was comp l e t e l y  luc id by mid-
. ,  s e s s ion . 7 4  During thi s s e s s i o n ,,.---±RAHMAN��· l±:l_-±f�i�n'2a'-""ld,,_\'.. --""-J.Y.!J...._..._-'-""'""'-'-- --

\ : 
. ... ; . .... 

that he was i de ed � 1 · 

(b) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

.7l �ov 2002 (Attachment 42) 
7 (b)( 1 ) Nov 2002 (Attachment 43) 

(b) (3) C IAAct 23 , , 
(b)(3) NatSecAct .TOl? SEGRE':P7 I Xl 
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SUBJECT : \"'S") Qeath trive s t i gation · - Gul RAHMAN 

(b)( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
I�-=---=--::---------�' c�ble det a i l ing this session r e ads . a s ·  

fo1lows : . · 

( b )( 1 ) 
· �As s e ssment : c· was ] f ina l l y  showing the resul t s  
o f  hi s ·  s tay at 

_
during this sess ion . While 

he was . s t i ll' C �  reSl S t ing, We b e l i eve
.
he may ·have 

cho sen to compromi s e  somewhat in exchange for improved 
condi t ions . Howeve r ,  it w·as also  po s s ib l e  that RAHMAN 

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

was so fatigued that he was unab le to cons i st ently 
· s tay with his coyer story even if he wi shed to do s o . 

During po:i:'t ions o f  inte rrogat ion:, RAHMAN was. confus ed 
as to his location, and the · pass age o f  t ime . At otbef 
times he would forget what he had been as kect \����-·_J 
would have to recapture his attention . .  I t  i s  . 

· difficult to know precisely how . much o f  hi s behavior 
.was fe i gned and how much was .  a result o f  h i s  physical 
and p s ycho lo�ical cond�tion ;  however ,  IC Jessen' s 
impr e s s ion was that he ·continues to use '.health and 
wel far e •' behaviors and complaints a s  a . maj or part o f  
h i s  resi stance posture . After the s e s s .:j..on , · RAHMAN wa·s 

(b)( 1 )  afforded some irnprovemen� · in h�s con9,i tions . . . 
· (b)(3) N tS A t Interrogators p lan to r e 1nt�rv1ew R.AHM.AN on 
. a ec c 0 ·Nov�mbe r . " 1 s 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) ' 
(b )(7)( c) 

(b )( 1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

,,·· 

3·7 .  � I l and Jes s en .. both attributed thi s · sma l l  
int erroga t ion b re a kthrough. t o  the .Pre s s ure techniques u s ed 
on RAHMAN .  Je s s en stated that h e  b e l ieved ·RAHMAN would 
have never made the admi s s ion wi thout the' p res sures placed 
on him . 'Je s s en s t a ted that · he consic;lered RAHMi\N' s 

' 

admi s s i on o f  his identity as a brea kthrough but did not 
b e l i eve that RAHMAN had been � bro ken . "  J e s s en stated that 
he be l i e.ve s  RAHMAN made ' _a compromise . He knew he wa s in 
troub l e  and knew we had a lot of  evidence that he �as· 

· RAHMAN . Jessen believes that RAHMAN knew that he could 
give up h i s  identity and po s s ibly get . a  l i tt l e  better 
t reatment ,  but s t i l l  protect the informat fon that was 
. t t t h' . 'I G 1 7 impor an o im . 

· 1s\ \Nov 2002 (Attachment 43) · 
76 Interview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30) 

(b)( 1 )  ' (b)(3) C IAAct 
n Interview of 

· 

Dec 2002 (Attachment 1 5) 
2 4  

(b)(3) NatSecAct ,/ (b)(7)(c) .\ .. J..� 'FOP OECRE'f//Xl � ·()--� ' 
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SUB JECT : tm Deatl1 I nve s t i g a.t i on .- Gul RAHMAN 

3 8  .. · · f-8-t On 0Novernb �r 200 2 , Headquart ers · r e que s ted 
· · that ps ycho l o g i s t .  res ·Jes s.en and James E .  M i t ch e l l  conduct 

a p s ycho lo g i c a l  a s s e s sment exam o.f RAHMAN to determine 
wh ich interrogat ion measures wou l d  be requ i r e d  to r ende r  
RARMAN comp l.i ant ; The cab l e . st ated· that Headquarte r s  was 
mo t ivated to extract any and a l l  ' operat ion�l informat i on on 
A1:....·Q a '  i da and ·Hezbi I s lami from RAHMAN·.. The cab l e  noted 
that i t  was the· a s s e s sment · or' the debr i e f e r s  that RAHMAN · 
may need to be sµbj ected to · e�hance d  interrogation ·me asures 
t o  induce h im tb comp l y . I 

(b ) (  1 )  
(b ) (3) NatSecAct 

I Headquarters r e que s t e d  that the ·results o f  the 
-e-x-.-am�in�a-t�i-o-n�be s ent t o  Headquarters where · a  determinat ion 

on the cour se of action cou l d  be made .Y · 
• • . t 

. 3 9' .  ts7 on that s�me day . D Novemb er 2 0 02 ) , je s s.en 
conducted a p s ycho l o g i c ai capt i vi t y ·  a s s e s sment ot RAHMAN .  
;Je s s en found that � was abl e  t o  accurat e l y  d e.s cr i b e  
t h e  ·c i r cums t ances , t ime , and locat ion ·of  his capture he was 
ab le to identi f y  tho s e  captured .witn h im . He was s l ow t6 

. answer some que s t i ons , wh i ch J�ssen at t r ibut ed to f at i gue . . 
and active res is tance . He was abl e  i dent i f y a l l  membe r s  o f  
h i s  f ami l y ,  th e i r  age s , " and p l a c e s  o f  b i rth . Q�e s tl ons 
that were non- sens i t ive· . to his r e s i s tance po iture were 
answe red qu i c k l y  and a c cur�te l y . S ens i t i ve que st ions 
y i e i d�d s t a l l i ng and p revaricat i on , Throughout thi � 
evaluation and the s i x  interrog a t i on s'e s s ions Jes s en · 
part i c ipated i n  up to that po int , Je s sen saw no s i gns o f  
psychopatho logy . R.AHMl}.N did fe i gn incohere�ce and profound 
confus ion at t imes , but wou l d . immediately r eve rt to a 
coh e r ent dial ogue when · i t  was in h i s  best inter e s t . Je s s en 
µ s s e s s ed RAHMAN as b e i ng· o·� above average int e l l i gence . 

. Jes s e n s t ated · that � was . a  ment a l l y  s t ab l e  indiv i dual 
. exhib i t ing ext raordinary res i l i ence in his ab i l i t y  to 

withs t and the v i c i s s itude s of captivity and pers i st in 

1s Alec�b)( i )�ov 2002 (Atta�hrnent 32J s  
(b)(3) C IMct TOP �li:CRET//Xl 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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SUBJECT : f&t Death I nvest i gation Gul RAHMAN 

an e f f ect ive resistance pos ture . There was no indication 
that RAHMAN suffered from any ps ychopatho.logy nor . that he 
would be - profoundly ·o r  permanentl y a f f ecteO. by continuing interrogations , to include HVT . enh�nced measures. 7 9  

4 0 .  ts') I n  the last p·aragraph . o f  Je s s en '  s menta'l 
e x amination repor t ,  Jes s en recommended an· inte rrogation 
p l an for RAHMAN "  The . las t paragraph o f  the cab l e  reads as 

. f o l lo11s : 

" l nterrogation .P l an ·R�commenctati6n: . Because o f  his 
.[ RAH.MAN '  s]  remarkab l e  phys i c a l  and ps ychol ogical 
res i l i enee and determination to pers i s t .  in his 
e f fect i ve res i s t.anc·e postu� e , �mp l oying enhanced 
measures is not the-. f irst o'r . be's t  optiori to y i e l d  
pos it i ve .i�terrogat.ioh resul ts . I n  fact, wHh s·uch 
individuals , increasirig phys i cal pres sures : o ften 
.b o l s ters the i r  r�\:) is tance . . The mo s t  e f f e ctive 
int errogation p l an· for . 'c;ul RAHMAN, i s  to . continue 
envi ronmenta l· depr ivat

.
ions he. is experiencing and 

ins tttut� · a conce�trated interro�at i on exposure · · 

regimen . This re
.
gimen would cons i s t  o f  repeated and 

· s eemingl y  cons ta�t inte+rogations ( 1 8  out · o f 24 hours 
per d�y } .. Thes e i�terrogations should be coordinated 
and present. with the s ame set 9f ke'y. subj ect areas . 
Interrogators should have the flexib i l ity and ins i ght 
to devi ate · w i th the Su.bj ect ' when . he begi ns to move , in 
a des ired, direction . '  ·rt  wi l l  be the cons is tent and 
pers i s tent appli cation of �ep rivations ( s le ep loss and ' 

. fatigu e )  and � e emingl y const ant interrogations, which 
w i l l  be mo s t  e f fective in wearing down this Subj e c t ' s 
res i s t ance pos tur e . I t  · wi l l  be· impo rt ant to manage 
the deprivations so as. to a l low S ub j ect adequate re s't 
and nour ishment S O· he remains coherent and · capabl e O f  
providing accura t·e . informa tio.n . The s tation phys i c.ian 
sho u l d  co l l aborate with the interrogat ion team to 
ach i eve this op timUil\ balance . I t  i s  reasonab l e· to 
expect two weeks or more o f  this r e g imeA before 
s i gni f i cant moveme;nt o ccurs . "  a9 

7 9  l I Nov 2002 (Attachment 44) : · 

ao (b )( 1 )  Nov 2002 (Attachment �41 6 . 
(b)(3) CIAAct . TOP S:SGRE':E'//Xl' . (b)(3) NatSecAct 
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r :  .t"S-l Death Inve s t i gat i on - Gul RAHMAN 

' (b)( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b) ( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b ) (3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) . 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b) ( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1 ) 
· (b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) '  l 
(b)(7)(c) / 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 )  
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

(b) (1 ) . 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b) 3 )  NatSecAct 

· 4 1 ,  t5i · on:=;: November 2 0 0 2 ; I I Stat ion Medical · 
O f f i c e r ,  I I e.xamined Gul RAHMAN and found 
no h e a l th probl em� (b)(1 ) . . D (b)(3) NatSecAct 

. 4 2 : ta-) T::� ernoon o f  November 2 0 0 2 ,  was the . 
last time I � 

H

- !saw RAHMAN alive . At that t ime , 
Cla s s es sed to b e . in good overall health . · 

. noted that RAHMAN had smal l abra sions on his wrist 
l e s  as a result o f  the res traint s .  His ankl e · 

r e st r.aint s  were loos ened, and hi s hand restraints were 
removeQ when . RAHMAN was returned to his c e l l . 92 . According �-=:=J RAHMAN had complained that he was

. 
cold, s o  . (b)(1 ) · 

L____J gave him a sweatshirt . 8 3  . 
· ' . (b)(3) NatSecAct . . . . . 

·� 3 • {-Si . Accl;l' ng to D Guard I I RAHMAN 
was fed, at 2 1 0 0  on Novembe r  2 0 0 2 .  Because pris oner.s are 

· fed one large meal a ay, and · becaus e of RAHMAN'' s actions 
on the · 

f o l l owing day, this is the .fast meal RAHMAN consumed 
prior to hi s death . 8 4  

• · · 

. ' 
4 4 . 4-&) Accord ing to � RAHMAN was fed . again at 

i s-o o on 0 November 2.002 . 05 �ing to nume rous s ources ,  
. · when the guards gave RAHl'1AN hi s food, he threw the . .  plat e ,  

wate rbott l e ,  and waste  bu cket at the guards . He began . 
yel l ing at the guards , repeating his ' threat , last ' s tated 
approximate ly  one

.
week pr ior , that he knew their faces and 

he would kil l them when, he got out of  the pri son . As a 
re su l t of �is violent behavior , I I ordered that .the 
g'uards put RAHMAN' s hand restr·ain t s  b a c k  on to prevent him 
from taking any other viol ent actions . 66 The guards 
pro c e e ded to shackl e  RAHMAN to the wal l  o f  his c e l l  in. a 
short chain po s ition , ( In the � shbrt chain" me thod, the 
pr i s oner ' s . hands are shackl ed together as ' are his feet . 
Then a: shprt chain i s  usep to shackle the hands . to' the 

a1 Interview of Nov 2002 !Attachment 27) r'-'-'-����,..-��--,------,-,--� 

· 03 Interview o 
84 Interview of 

Nov 2002 (Attochment 40) · 
1--------- Dec 2002. (Attachment 1 5) 

-�Nov 2002 (Attachment 45) (b) (1 ) 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7 )(c) 

ss Interview of. 
86 

. Nov 2002 (Attachment 45) (b)(3) C IAAct 
Nov 2002 (Attochrnent 40) (b)(3) NatSecAct (b)( 1 )-� 2 7  (b)(6) ' (b)(3) C IAAct TQP �BGF\E'l?//)H (b)(7) (c) (b)(3) NatSecAct 
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f e et . T�is  ' ke ep s  a p r i soner ' s h�nd shackled w i thin s everal 
i nche s o f  h i s  feet . The pri sqner ' s  f e et are then shackled 
to the w al l ) . The only clothing be ing worn by RAHMAN at this po int wa� the sweatshirt given to him by l I the 
day b e fo r e . RAHMAN ' was nl).de fl:'om the wai s t  down . RAHMAN 
had b e en n�de , with the �xception o f  .a diaper for mos t · o f  
hi s incarcerat ion , ·Ther e  i s . unce rtainty a s  t o  when 

·RAHMA.N1 s diaper had b een removed. . As of approx ima t e ly 
1 5 0 0, on D Novenlber 2 0 0 2 , RAHMAN was shackled i n  a s i tt ing, 
p o s i t ion on bare concrete whi l e  nuqe from th� wais t. doWJ1. . 
The manner in which he was shackl ed prevented him from 
s t an�ing . upr i ght . 

· 

· 4 5 .  . +s1 · Th� c:=Jguards made th.ei r  normai . ' rounds t o  · 

check on the p r i soners on'[=] Novemb e r  2 0 02 ,  at 2 2 0 0  and · 

2 3 0 0' ,  The . guards . did not enter RAJIMAN' s ·cel l ,  but v i s ua l l y ·  
i n spected him . ' from t h e  outs ide us ing a f l as h l i ght . 81 ' 

) 
Accor din to uard I --�� -- ] 

· � anct clie cked RAHMAN' s cell at QqQO on 
L_J t:i:ovembe r  2. 0 0 2 . .sta.ted that· they l o o ked �nto hi s 

(b)( 1 ) ' ' 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1 ) 
(b) (3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7)( c) 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(?)(c) · 

. ce l l  and whi s t l ed. .  RAHMAN was s i tt i ng in his ce l l , a l ive 
and snaking . ea At 0 8 00 ,  �uards· I I I J roade the rounds to check on the prisone r s . Acc o raing 
to the guards , 'RAH1':1AN was al ive , s ifting 'on the f l oor and 
s haking . · llI1o ted that RAHMAN' s eye's were open and 
b l inking . r===J sa id RAHMAN '  s. shaking did not s e ehua l .  
b ecau s e  a l l  o f  the p r i soners sh'ake·. 89 Acco rding to · 

guard l I he checked RAHMAN ' s c e l l  at 1 0 0 • e . 
no ted . tha� the p r i soner was l ying on h i s  s i�e .  I I 
t appe d  the door with h i s  night s t � ck;  howeve r ,  the prisoner 
did not move . At tha.t point , I J sought out I I a 
C IA TDY' e r' who was at i Ito debri e f  other 
de tainee s . 90 . · . 

4 6 .  t-S-) According to inte rviews conducted w i th 
Agency personnel pre s ent at I J when. RAHMAN' s body 
w as di scov.ered, �I -------------�! were 
' (b) ( 1 ) ' ' (b)(1 ) 

(b)(3) C IAAct (b)(3) C IAAct _(b)(3) NatSecAct__ (b)(3) NatSecAct 
a1 Nov �002 (Attachment 40) 

i (b)(1 ) 1111 �1n--,--te-rv--,-le_w_o-:f:-r==='-'--''--'-�-; Nov 2002 (Attachment 45) 
., (b) (3) C IAAct9 Interviews 0 Nov 2002 (Attachment 45) 
<(b)(3) NatSecActervlew of (b) ( 1 ) Nov 2002 (Attac ment 45) 
(b)(6) (b)(3) NatSecAct · 2 8  
(b) (?) (c) (b)(?) (c) TOP �i:CRgg;i,</Xl 
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. IN' $EC1\l!:!//X'1 (b)(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(3) CIAAct 0UBJECT . (b)(3) NatSecAct, · · 

ffi-) (b )( 1 ) 
Death Inves�igation - Gul RAHMAN (�)(3) CIAAct 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)(1) ' 
(b) (3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b) (7)(c) 

(b)(1) • '  

(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6), 
(b)(7)(c). 

(b)( 1 ) :" . ' 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b )( 1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct . 
(b )(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) .. 
(b )(7)( c) 

all at to interrogate other prisoners . At 
.appro�imatel.h:JOOO on llNoyeni.ber 2 0 0 2 ,  one of  the guards 
walked up to and �ormed �at one o f  the 
prisoners was ·no movin9 . The · officers went with ' the 
guard to RAHMAN' s. cell . .The guar . unlocked · th� cell  and 
opened the door . RAHMAN was lying .rnotiorless on h-i's right 
side with his ·hands and feet shackled together and his feet 
·Shackled to the wall . There was · a small amount .of blood 
coming from· his  no·se  and mouth . RAHMAN was clothed in a 
sweatshirt . but had no pants . I !noted ' that the only 
things in his cell were ·an empty red. waste bucket, and a 
�ood trai with a small piece o f  bread bn · it . stated 
that there was rice strewn all over cell . entered the 
"cell and checked RAHMAN' s pulse . When he cou not f ind · a . pulse ,  ' he 'belgan CIR chest compressions . "  With each. chest 
compression, · noted tha� mor� would come from his 
l'(touth and mucous · from his . nose . L______Jreturned t9 the area 
wher.e interrogations are coi;:iducted and called one· .of the 

· Station medics on the .radid. I \ also tried to contact 
I .lbut he could not .firid him . Station medic c� 
stated th.at he rece ived the radio call , but it was very 
cryptic . . �tated that he did not know why he was 
being summone. o J � I stated that h·e and 

( the other Stati on medic)  grabbed 
'----c-t�h-e-�i_r_m_e_d�.1�· c-a�l,--.b_a_g_s_,-o�b�t-a�1n�ed transportation , and traveled 

to· 1 . f 9.i_ n 93. 94  
. 

4 7 ,  tei When II noted that CPR was unsuccessful in 
reviving RAHM.AN, he �red that. the cell be se�led until · 
the doctor arrived . arrived 3 0 - 4 5  
minutes later . Upon arrival , Station pe!=sonne·l greeted 

and informed him that a p r i s oner was de a d .  
went to · RAHMAN·, s cell an'd found him 

L. �1-y�n-g-on��-��e-.-_j-------, examined RAHMAN ' � body and 
rolled it on both sides . stated that there was no 
evidence that the pris�����-.::-.::-....::-���e�en abused and no evidence 
of a cause o f  death . ·  noted . that the blood coming 

�--� 

91 lntervlew of 
· 9tlntervlew of 

93 Interview of 
94 Interview o.f 

Nov 2002 (Attachment 14) 
Nov 2002 (Attachment 46) (b )( 1 )  . Nov .2002 (Attachment 47) 

(b)(3) C IAAct Nov 2002 (Attachment 27) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 2 9 · 

. (b )(7)( c) !!'OP SBCRE'N /}(1 
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from the · riose  and mouth was dark and inconsi stent with a 
(b ) (3)  ·C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

.wound to that area . I ! estimated that RAHMAN(b)(1·) : · 
died within the past few hours . 95 96 . . (b)(3) NatSecAct 

4 8 . rs; 1 . � I noted that they .  found it 
. unusual "that the[--Jguard commander was '  riot present at the . 

prison at the. time of  RAHMAN' s death . The inter.i0r prison 

(b)( 1 ) " � live ins"icte. th·e prison and rarely. leave . When 
L___J questione.d the guards about th ' absence (b)(3) C IAAct he was told that the Cornm�nder was at (b)(1) (b)(3) NatSecAct said he heard . second hand that the guards told (b)(3) NatSecAct 

������(c) I ltha.t the Commander had .a family  emergency . · 

4. 9· . . . +&+ . . I t· is importan:t· to n<?te that during. this 
investigation several officers made reference to an 
�nexpected temp�rature drop I I immediately prior to 
RA.HMAN' ·s death . The following are the Accuweather · 

(b)( 1 ) temperatures I I �uring the month of November : 2 0 0 2 : 
(b ) (3) NatSecAct===�===�;;:;:;;:;;;:;:;;:;::;:;:::�==�============= I f ;.. . .. . -: ' 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

· 50 . \-So) No photographs were t�at the scene of 
RA.HMAN' s death . Later that · ev�ning, � 

�,.----�������----' 

delivered a freezer to the facility and RAHMAN' s body was 
frozen unti l  invest�

9
ga.ting pers'onnel c(b){i) 

arrive to 
conduct an autopsy ·  (b)(3) NatSecAct 

(b)( 1 ) · 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

----(b)(6) . 
9S lntervlew of (b)(7)�002 (Attachment 1 4) 
96 Interview of Nov 2002 (Attachment 271 
91 Interview of Nov 2002 (Attochment 1 2) 
9B Interview o Nov 2002 (Atlachmer.t 46) 

99· lnterview o Nov 2002 (Attochment 1 2) 
������ 3 0 ' 
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(b) ( 1 ) . 
(b)(3) NatSecAct AUTOPSY 

· 5 1 . � Dr . conducted an autops y  on 

(b) (1 ) ·  
· ' (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b )(7) (  c) 

R.A.HMiili ont _ _J November 2 0 0 2 . His findings are ' p re sen� in 
(b) ( 1 ) ·. · h i s " report- ent i t le d ,  " Final Autp o s y  Findings , ' CASE # L  J (b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) C IAAct · �hich i s  att.ached to this repor t . In . 'sununary,  ___ _J 
(b)(3) NatSecActDr . . l i s ted . the caus e o f  de_ath as " undetermined . u  
(b)(6) · s tated, how.eve r ,  that - it · wa s  h i s  clinical imp re s s ion 
(b)(7)(c). t):'lat RAHMAN <;l i e d  of hypothe rmi a . 1 00 

(b )( 1 )  

. . 
· s2 . �-

· Ds t a t ed that hypotherm.i,a i s  a di agno s i s  
o f  e� c l�s io�. In e s s �nce , · · othei potent i a l  caus es are ruled 
out one by one unt i l  you · are l e f t  with no other . 
p o s s ib i l i t y . " c=·-J s tated that he conducted a. ful l 
ant e r i or . ne·ck d i s s e ction . I I found no evi dence · o f  
h emorrh,age ·in .the t i ssu� , mus c l e s , and cart i.lage around the 
neck and no evidence o f  damage to the Hyo i d  bone . I n j uries' 

. . _such a s  t he s e  are . common i
n 

ca·s e s  . .  o f  s trangu
.
1 ation.. r I 

(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 
(b)(7)(c) .. . 

) " \ / 

· ··· · ' 

(b ) (  1 )  
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7)(c) 

(b)( 1 )  . 
(b)(3) CIAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b)(6) 
(b)(7 )(c) · 

; 
.\ 

· e xamined the ' s o ft t i s sue on the ins ide o;E the mouth. and 
· found no· evidence that pres sure was pl aced over the mouth 
as is cornmol'\ in cas e s  of smother ing . The r e was no trauma 
to the· teeth . . · The h.ead· and· s kull were examined and 
di spl.ay.ed no evidence of . f'acia'l or s kull fractures and no 
blood in the ant e r i o r  chambers of the e y e s . II examined 
the che s t ,  t runk ,  abdomen,  and geni tal s and �o 
evidence o f  t rauma·. RAHMAN had abrasio

n
s to both wri s t s  

a n d  ankl e s , but there
. 

w a s  no · evidence o f  infecti'on , RAHMAN 
had a . number ·o f  s c r ape.s on his s houlders , l eg s ,  and hip

�
; 

howevar , ' the re · was · no br
�

i�ing around the abr a s ions 
.sugge st ing that . there wa s no b l.unt · fo:i;ce trauma . 101 (b) ( 1 ) 
53 . ts-1 The toxicology was condu�te:id by the I (b)

1
(3) NatSecAct 

I I · The tox i co 1 o gy inc 1 u
�
d�e-d..-.:t_e_s..,t--.-i_n_g __ 

f o r  a l l  o.f the cla s s ic poi sons . t o  include cyan ide . 
·Addi t ioi:ia l l y ,  they t e's t e d  for sub s t ances us.ed in truth 
s erums and found· no evidence o f  toxic ·sub s t ances . Dur ing 
the autop� y , [ [ specifica l l y  looked f o r  inj ection marks 
on the body and s e arched for pil l fragments in the mo�th 
and stomach �nd found no indicat i o� that he had ingested· 
any p i l l s  o� receive d  any inj e c t i o

ri
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100 Final Autopsy Findin s ,  Attachment 48) 
(b) (3) C IAAct 

io 1  Interview of Dr. (b) (  1 )  Dec 2002 (Attachm�nt 49 ) 
io2 1ntervlew of Dr (b)(3) C IAAct Dec 2002 (Attachment 49) 

(b)(3) NatSecActs:m;�\;:m , ly1 (b)(6) x C L  "'"'""""'"'' I 'l't% 

(b )(7)( c) 

Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C0655531 8  



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 32 of 72

C06555318 
Approved for Release: 201 6/09/30 C0655531 8 

.. ·-· .. .. , .. - . .. . . . . . . ... . , . . .. ... .. . · · ·· ···· .. . .  . 

· I OP S:tCI\l!:I //X 1 
,, . -/ ·.'! � 
:::: .. ;,J.i SUB JECT : rs;· ·neath I nvest i gation - Gul RAHMAN 

(b)(1 ) 
(b)(3) C IAAct 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
(b )(6) 

. 

(b )(7)( c) 

\ 
·: ·· ·  

·� .. : . . 

5 4 . · ffl') In ma king . the c l inical diagnosis o f  death by 
hypo thermi a ,  L_J b as ed his conc lusion and the c l i n i c a l  
e nvironment in which RA.ffi-Oill wa s found a n d  t h e  informat ion 
comp i l ed du ring the inve s t i g

.
ation . · I lbased his · 

conclusions . on the fo l lowing f actors 

o RAHMAN' s u r i ne had high cat echo l amine l eve l s , 
· Wh i ch. i s  cons i s t e nt with hypotherrnic deaths . 

o RAHMAN was seen ·s h iver i ng for ' a  nutnber o f  hou�s 
irrunediat e l y  prior t o  his de ath . 

o The env:i ronment in wh i ch he was hous ed w,a s 
extreme l y  cold , On the n i ght o f  h i s '  ·de ath, the 
o ut s i de t empe ratur e was 3 1. deg r e e s . The. pri son · 
f ac i l i t y  i �  no t {n�ul at�d . 

· 

o RAHMAN had not. e at e n  in app rox-ima t e l y  3 6  hours . 
N0 food was found in '�is . s t o�ach du ring the 
autop s y . RAHMAN' s g l ycogen l eve1 s would have 
b e e.n · dep l eted . G l ycogen i.s a fuel source 'us e d  by 
the body to stay warm . 

o RAHM.AN was . unclo the.ct from the wai s t . ctown and was 
in dir e ct cont act with cold concre t e . Di rect 
cqnduct ion i s  a s i gni ficant c aus e o f  h�at l o s s  in 
the body . 

o RAHMAN was chained in a short chain po s i t io n . 
Thi s  pr e vented him from s t anding up and moving 
around to ·warm h i s  body . 

a RAHMAN was dehydrated which .ls a con t r ibuting 
f actor to hypothermi a .  1 0 3  
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CONCLUS IONS 

The evidence developed during the course of this 
inves.t igation su ggests th'e fO,l l owing ; 

o There is  no evidence to suggest that RAHMAN ' s death 
was deliberate . 

o There · i s  no eviden.ce to sugg.e s t  that RAHMAN was 
.beaten, tortured; poisoned,. strangled, or smothered . 

o Hypothermia was the .'most . likely· .cause o f  death o f  ·Gul 
RAHMAN .  

o H i s  death was not deliberate ,  but resulted from his 
. incarceration · in a cold environment while nude from. 
the waist  down, . and shackled in' a po'sition ):hat ' 
prevented him from moving around to  keep warm . 
Additionally, this  kept him in .direct contact wit·h the 
cold concret'e floor leading t o  a loss of bodyheat 

. through conduction . 
o Gul RAHMAN' s actions contributed to his own death . By 

throwing his last meal he was unable to provide his 
body w.i:th a source of  fuel  to keep him warm . · 

Additional ly, h-i s violent behavior resulted in his 
restr.aint which prevented him f rom generating body 
heat by moving around and brought , him in direct 
contact with the 

conc�ete floor leading to a lo s s o f  bodyhe at through 
conduction . 

At t achments 
As s tated 
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PREET BHARARA 
United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York 
By: KIRTI VAID YA REDDY 
Assistant United States Attorney 
86 Chambers Street, Third Floor 
New York, New York 1 0007 
Telephone No. (2 1 2) 637-275 1 
kirti.reddy@usdoj.gov 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

x 
--------------

UN IT ED STATES OF AMERICA and THE 
ST ATE OF NEW YORK ex rel. 
LUCILLE ABRAHAMSEN, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

HUDSON VALLEY HEMATOLOGY­
ONCOLOGY ASSOCIATES, R.L.L.P. ;  
RAM R.  KANCHERLA; PONCIANO L .  
REYES; MICHAEL J .  MARESCA; LEV 
DAVIDSON; JULIA A. SCHAEFER­
CUTILLO; JEFFREY A. STEWARD; 
GERALD A. COLVIN; TAUSEEF AHMED; 
JOHN C. NELSON; CARMELLA A. 
PUCCIO; KAREN P. SEITER; DELONG 
LIU; ASIM AIJAZ; SHEETAL 
SHRIMANKER, 

Defendants. 
x 

--------------

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff-Intervenor, 

v. 

HUDSON VALLEY HEMATOLOGY­
ONCOLOGY ASSOCIATES, R.L.L.P . ,  

Defendant. 
x 

--------------

COMPLAINT-IN-INTERVENTION 

14 Civ. 2653 (KMK) 

Jury Trial Demanded 
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The United States of America (the "Government"), by its attorney, Preet Bharara, United 

States Attorney for the Southern District ofNew York, files this Complaint-In-Intervention 

against Hudson Valley Hematology Oncology Associates, R.L.L.P. ,  ("Hudson Valley" or 

"Defendant"), alleging as follows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1 .  The Government brings this Complaint-In-Intervention seeking damages and civil 

penalties against Hudson Valley, a hematology and oncology medical practice, under the False 

Claims Act, 3 1  U.S.C. § §  3729 et seq. (the "False Claims Act"), and the Anti-Kickback Statute, 

42 U.S.C. § 1 320a-7b (the "Anti-Kickback Statute"), based on Hudson Valley' s  schemes to 

defraud the United States in connection with federally-funded health care programs, namely the 

Medicare Program, Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. § §  1 395 et seq. 

("Medicare"), and the Medicaid Program, 42 U.S.C. § §  1 396 et seq. ("Medicaid"). 

2. As set forth more fully below, the United States alleges in this action that Hudson 

Valley, a medical practice that provides services to individuals with cancer and blood disorders 

through its offices in the Hudson Valley Region ofNew York, engaged in two separate 

fraudulent schemes, each resulting in the submission of false and fraudulent claims for 

reimbursements from Medicaid and Medicare. 

3 .  In the first scheme, Hudson Valley provided kickbacks to Medicare beneficiaries 

by routinely waiving their copayments, which is the amount the beneficiaries were required to 

pay for services rendered, without an individualized determination of financial hardship or 

exhaustion of reasonable collection efforts. In addition, even though Hudson Valley waived the 

copayments, it included the copayment amounts in billings submitted to Medicare for 

reimbursement, thereby falsely inflatingjts bills to Medicare for those services. 

2 



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 40 of 72



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 41 of 72

4. In the second scheme, Hudson Valley submitted claims for Medicare and 

Medicaid reimbursements for Current Procedural Terminology ("CPT") billing codes 992 1 1  and 

99212, although the services (i) were not medically necessary, (ii) were not actually performed, 

(iii) were not documented in the medical record, and/or (iv) failed to otherwise comply with 

Medicare and Medicaid rules and regulations. Hudson Valley submitted thousands of fraudulent 

claims to Medicare and Medicaid, and was paid based on those claims. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5 .  This Court has jurisdiction over the claims brought under the False Claims Act 

pursuant to 3 1  U.S.C. § 3730(a) and 28 U.S.C. § §  1 3 3 1  and 1 345,  as well as pursuant to the 

Court 's  general equitable jurisdiction. 

6. Venue is appropriate in this District pursuant to 3 1  U.S.C. § 3 732(a) and 28 

U.S.C. §§ 1 3 9 l (b) and 1 39 l (c), because Hudson Valley is located in this District and a 

substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in this District. 

PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff is the United States of America. 

8 .  Defendant Hudson Valley i s  a hematology and oncology practice, registered as a 

limited liability partnership, with three partners and owners: Ramamohana R. Kancherla, M.D. ,  

Michael J .  Maresca, M.D., and Ponciano L. Reyes, M.D. Although it previously had as many as 

eleven offices, Hudson Valley currently has six offices located in Poughkeepsie, Carmel, 

Yorktown Heights, Middletown and Hawthorne, New York. Hudson Valley employs 

physicians, nurses, and other medical professionals who provide services to individuals with 

cancer and blood disorders, including chemotherapy and radiology. 

3 



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 42 of 72



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 43 of 72

9. Relator Lucille Abrahamsen ("Relator") is a resident of New York. Relator is a 

former Accounts Receivable Representative at Hudson Valley, responsible for coding and charge 

entry for billing purposes. 

A. The Anti-Kickback Statute 

FACTS 

1 0. The Anti-Kickback Statute makes it illegal for individuals or entities to 

knowingly and willingly offer or pay remuneration (including any kickback, bribe, or rebate) to 

any person to induce business that is reimbursed under a Federal health care program. 42 U.S.C. 

§ 1 320a-7b. 

1 1 .  Congress enacted a prohibition against the payment of kickbacks in any form to 

protect the Medicare and Medicaid programs because remuneration can influence health care 

decisions that would result in services being provided that are medically unnecessary, of poor 

quality, or even harmful to a vulnerable patient population. See Social Security Amendments of 

1 972, Pub. L. No. 92-603 , § §  242(b) and (c); 42 U.S.C.  § 1 320a-7b(i)(6)(A), Medicare-Medicaid 

Antifraud and Abuse Amendments, Pub. L. No. 95- 142;  Medicare and Medicaid Patient Program 

Protection Act of 1 987, Pub.
·
L. No. 1 00-93 . 

12 .  As codified in  the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 201 0 

("PPACA"), Pub. L. No. 1 1 1 - 148, § 6402(±), 1 24 Stat. 1 1 9, codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1 320a-7b(g), 

"a claim that includes items or services resulting from a violation of [the Anti-Kickback Statute] 

constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes of [the False Claims Act] ." 

B. Hudson Valley's Copayment Waiver Scheme 

1 3 .  Generally, Medicare covers 80% of the "reasonable charges" billed by the 

provider for the Medicare-approved health services provided to a patient. 42 U.S.C. 

4 
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§ 1 395(a)(l ). Accordingly, the patient is normally required to contribute the remaining 20% of 

the "reasonable charges" as a copayment. 42 U.S.C. § 1 395cc(a)(2)(A)(ii). 

14 .  Waiver of co payments in consideration of a particular patient's financial hardship 

is permitted in exceptional circumstances. The hardship exception, however, must not be used 

routinely; it should be used occasionally to address the special financial needs of a particular 

patient, supported by documentation of financial hardship. Except in such special cases, a good 

faith effort to collect deductibles and copayments must be made. 

1 5 .  Hudson Valley routinely waived copayments, without making an individualized 

determination of financial hardship or exhausting reasonable collection efforts. 

1 6. Hudson Valley waived copayments for various reasons, including for individuals 

who sought frequent medical services from Hudson Valley, had a high balance, whose insurance 

did not pay certain amounts, or who expressed an inability to pay. None of these reasons were 

allowable exceptions. Additionally, Hudson Valley consistently waived the copayments without 

receiving any supporting documentation or additional information from the patients. 

1 7. Hudson Valley noted the waiver of these copayments in its billing system using 

terms such as "write-off," "down coding for Medicare," and "professional courtesy." 

1 8 . As one example, between August 201 2  and September 2014, Patient A was 

treated 34 times at Hudson Valley. Hudson Valley did not collect the copayment for any of these 

treatments and its records do not contain any documentation explaining the reasons for the 

waivers. 

1 9 . Further, specifically as to Current Procedural Terminology ("CPT") code 992 1 2, 

Hudson Valley often waived the copayment associated with it even if the patient did not request 

5 



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 46 of 72



Case 1:15-cv-09317-AKH   Document 53-8   Filed 10/17/16   Page 47 of 72

a waiver. Hudson Valley would note the automatic waiver in its billing systems by indicating 

"992 12  courtesy write off." 

20. For example, Hudson Valley used CPT code 992 1 2  to bill Medicare for services 

rendered to Patient B on eleven separate occasions. On each of those dates, Hudson Valley 

waived the copayment. Patient B's  medical charts contain no documentation for the basis on 

which Hudson Valley waived the copayments. 

2 1 .  In addition to waiving copayments, Hudson Valley overbilled Medicare by 

including the value of the waived copayment in the amount that it billed Medicare for the 

service, instead of subtracting that copayment because Hudson Valley hadn't actually received it, 

as dictated by Medicare regulations. See 

https://oig.hhs.gov/fraud/docs/alertsandbulletins/12 1 994.html (last accessed October 1 5 , 201 6). 

22. For example, in the case of Patient B, Hudson Valley submitted a claim for 

$ 1 25 .00 for each 992 1 2  code and received reimbursement from Medicare for a percentage of that 

amount. However, Hudson Valley waived the $9.21 copayment amount, and therefore, the 

actual amount of that claim should have been $ 1 1 5 .  79, for which Medicare would have 

reimbursed a lower amount based on the same percentage. 

C. Billing Codes 

23 .  The CPT codes are a set of standardized medical codes developed and maintained 

by the American Medical Association. CPT codes are used to describe and report medical, 

surgical and diagnostic procedures and services to public and private health insurance programs 

for medical billing purposes. 

6 
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24. The United States uses CPT codes to determine both coverage, i. e .  if it will pay 

for the billed medical procedures and services, and reimbursement, i. e .  how much it will pay for 

the billed medical procedures and services. 

25 .  There are thousands of CPT codes; each procedure or service or item furnished to 

a patient has a specific CPT code. Each CPT code receives a certain level of reimbursement, 

which can vary depending on what other codes are billed. The amount of money a physician or 

medical provider is paid for his or her services by Medicare or Medicaid depends on which CPT 

codes are used. 

26. As directed by the American Medical Association, in addition to CPT codes used 

to bill for a procedure, service or item, certain CPT codes, specifically 992 1 1 ,  9921 2, 992 1 3 ,  

9921 4, and 99215 , are used to indicate various degrees of evaluation and management ("E/M") 

of established patients when they make an in-office visit for treatment. These codes are, 

accordingly, referred to as "E/M codes." These codes differ depending on whether the patient is 

seen by a doctor, the amount of time spent with the patient, and what services are performed. As 

the patient's examination becomes increasingly in-depth or greater time is spent with the patient, 

the code number increases, with 992 1 1 as the lowest level and 992 1 5  as the highest level. 

27. Code 9921 1 is used when the patient's problems are "minimal,'' meaning they 

require little to no independent medical evaluation; typically only 5 minutes are spent 

"performing or supervising" routine patient services. Code 992 1 1 is the only E/M code that 

explicitly states that it "may not require the presence of a physician or other qualified healthcare 

professional." Code 992 1 1 is typically used to bill for services provided exclusively by nurses. 

28. Code 992 1 2  is used for office or outpatient E/M visits with established patients 

that require two of three key components: (1)  a problem-focused history; (2) a problem-focused 

7 
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examination; and (3) a straightforward medical decision. This code is typically appropriate 

where approximately 1 0  minutes are spent face-to-face with the patient and/or family. 

29. Codes 99213 -992 1 5  are used when the patient's examination becomes 

increasingly in-depth, the medical decisions become more complex, and/or greater time is spent 

with the patient. 

30 .  Some CPT codes used to bill for a procedure, service or item automatically 

include a designated E/M code (992 1 1 -992 1 5). This is referred to as "bundling." For these 

codes, a separate E/M code should not be billed. 

3 1 .  As relevant to Hudson Valley, for the administration of infusions, injections and 

chemotherapy, the relevant CPT codes for those treatments have been "bundled" with, i .e. , 

valued to automatically include, CPT code 992 1 1 .  See 

https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Coding/NationalCorrectCodlnitEd/index.html (CMS-published 

National Correct Coding Initiative Policy Manual for Medicare Services - 201 5). Therefore, 

when nurses, under the guidance of a physician, administer an infusion, injection, or 

chemotherapy, claims for such services must be billed for only the specific procedure codes; 

E/M code 9921 1 cannot also be billed. 

32 .  In order to use an E/M code that meets a higher complexity level than a code 

9921 1 on the same day as another bundled procedure such as an infusion, injection, or 

chemotherapy, there must be "a significant, separately identifiable E/M service that is above and 

beyond the usual pre- and post-operative work of the procedure." See CMS Manual System, 

Transmittal 954, Pub. 1 00-04 (May 1 9, 2006), available at https://www .cms.gov/Regulations­

and-Guidance/Guidance/Transmi ttals/ downloads/R9 5 4CP. pdf (last accessed Oct. 1 5 , 201 6). 

8 
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3 3 .  Venipuncture, which i s  the puncturing of a vein as part of a medical procedure, 

typically to withdraw a blood sample or for an intravenous injection, also utilizes a bundled 

code. Unlike the services described above, it is permissible to code an E/M 9921 1 together with 

the procedure code for venipuncture, so long as there is a separately identifiable E/M service that 

is above and beyond the usual pre- and post-operative work of the procedure. 

34. For all codes, the medically necessary E/M service and the procedure must be 

appropriately and sufficiently documented by the physician or qualified non-physician 

practitioner in the patient's medical record to support the claim for these services. Medicare 

Claims Processing Manual, Chap. 12  at § 30.6.6(B). 

3 5 .  Medicare reimburses only for "medically necessary," or "reasonable and 

necessary" services and procedures, including levels of E/M. 42 U.S.C. § 1 395y(a)(l)(A). 

D. Hudson Valley's Overcoding Scheme for CPT 99211 and 99212 Codes 

36.  On a daily basis, Hudson Valley created two schedules: an "M.D. schedule" and 

a "Chem/Inj/RN schedule" (the "R.N. schedule"). The patients on the R.N. schedule were 

scheduled to receive minor or routine services administered by a nurse, such as B 12  injections, 

blood withdrawals or chemotherapy. The patients on the R.N. schedule typically were not seen 

by a doctor during the appointment. 

37 .  In fact, given the large number of patients listed on both the R.N. and the M.D. 

schedules for any particular date, it typically would have been impossible for a physician to 

examine and/or manage all of the patients scheduled on both the R.N. and M.D. schedules. 

3 8 .  Despite the fact that the physicians at Hudson Valley typically did not see any of 

the patients on the R.N. schedule, at the end of each day, the nonphysician practioners who 

treated patients on the R.N. schedule left all of those patients' medical charts on the desk of one 

9 
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of the Hudson Valley physicians to sign the progress notes. For those charts, the doctor would 

falsely certify that he or she had participated in the evaluation and management of the patients on 

the R.N. schedule. 

39.  Specifically, the doctor would fill in a time period in the form portion of the 

progress note which stated "I spent _ minutes in evaluation and management of the patient," 

and would sign the note. 

40. Thus, despite the fact that patients on the R.N. schedule typically were not treated 

by a physician and did not receive a "significant, separately identifiable service" while 

undergoing chemotherapy, a B 1 2  injection, venipuncture, or other similar service, Hudson 

Valley billed Medicare or Medicaid an additional amount for those patients using a separate E/M 

code, based upon the false certification by the Hudson Valley doctors. 

4 1 .  For example, Patient C was treated on the R.N. schedule on three occasions in 

September 20 1 2. The progress note for each of those dates states that Patient C received an 

infusion due to her anemia. The notes do not indicate any treatment above and beyond the usual 

infusion procedure, which was performed by a nurse. The patient 's  chart, however, falsely 

certifies for each of those dates that a physician spent at least ten minutes "in evaluation and 

management of the patient," and contains the physician's signature. For these procedures 

Hudson Valley submitted claims to Medicare for CPT code 9921 2, in addition to the CPT codes 

relating to venipuncture and infusion, although no separate evaluation and management service 

was necessary, nor is there evidence that any such service was actually provided to the patient, 

apart from the doctor' s  false certification; 

42. Similarly, Patient D was treated on the R.N. schedule on three occasions in June 

and July of 201 5 .  The progress notes for those dates indicate that the patient received 

1 0  
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venipuncture services, but no additional services were necessary or were provided to her. 

However, for those procedures, Hudson Valley submitted claims to Medicare for both the CPT 

code 364 1 5  and the E/M code 992 1 2. 

43.  Likewise, for Patient E, on May 1 9, 20 14  and June 1 6, 2014, the progress notes 

indicate that he had his blood drawn and do not reflect that any other "significant, separately 

identifiable service" was necessary or was provided. Again, however, Hudson Valley submitted 

billings to Medicare for both the venipuncture and, unjustifiably, the E/M 9921 2  code. 

CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FIRST CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Presenting False Claims for Payment 

(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l)(A)) 

44. The United States incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

45 . The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3729(a)(l )(A) 

of the False Claims Act. 

46.  As a result of offering kickbacks in the form of waived copayments, in violation of 

the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § l 320a-7b(b )(2)(B), Hudson Valley knowingly caused false 

claims to be presented for reimbursement by Medicare, in violation of 3 1  U.S.C.  § 3 729(a)( l )  (2006), 

and, as amended, 3 1  U.S.C.  § 3 729(a)( l )(A). 

47.  Specifically, Hudson Valley knowingly certified and/or represented that the 

reimbursements it sought were in full compliance with applicable federal and state laws prohibiting 

fraudulent and false reporting, including but not limited to the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C.  § 1 320a-

7b. 

1 1  
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4 8 .  By reason of these false or fraudulent claims that Hudson Valley caused to be 

presented to Medicare, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare 

reimbursements to Hudson Valley, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil 

monetary penalty for each false claim. 

SECOND CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Use of False Statements 
(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l)(B)) 

49. The Government incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

50.  The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3729(a)(l )(B) 

of the False Claims Act. 

5 1 .  As a result of providing kickbacks in the form of waived copayments, in violation 

of the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1 320a-7b(b)(2)(B), Hudson Valley knowingly caused 

false records or statements to be made that were material to getting false or fraudulent claims 

paid by Medicare, in violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2000), and, as amended, 3 1  U.S.C. § 

3729(a)(l )(B). 

52.  By reason of these false or fraudulent claims that Hudson Valley caused to be 

presented to Medicare, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare 

reimbursements to Hudson Valley, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil 

monetary penalty for each false claim. 

1 2  
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THIRD CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Presenting False Claims for Payment 

(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l)(A)) 

5 3 .  The United States incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

54. The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3729(a)(l )(A) 

of the False Claims Act. 

55 .  By inflating the amount of  the value of  services rendered to Medicare 

beneficiaries by including the waived copayment amount when submitted its claims for 

reimbursement, Hudson Valley knowingly caused false claims to be presented for reimbursement 

by Medicare. 

56.  Accordingly, Hudson Valley knowingly caused to be presented false or fraudulent 

claims for payment or approval in violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)( l )  (2006), and, as amended, 

3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l )(A). 

57. By reason of these false or fraudulent claims that Hudson Valley caused to be 

presented to Medicare, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare and Medicaid 

reimbursements to Hudson Valley, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil 

monetary penalty for each false claim. 

FOURTH CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Use of False Statements 

(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C, § 3729(a)(l)(B)) 

58 .  The United States incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

1 3  
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59. The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3 729( a)( l  )(B) 

of the False Claims Act. 

60. By inflating the amount of the value of services rendered to Medicare 

beneficiaries by including the waived copayment amount when submitted its claims for 

reimbursement, Hudson Valley knowingly caused false claims to be made for reimbursement by 

Medicare. 

6 1 . Accordingly, Hudson Valley knowingly caused false or fraudulent claims to be 

made for payment or approval in violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2006), and, as amended, 

3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)( l)(B). 

62. By reason of these false or fraudulent records or statements that Hudson Valley 

caused, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare reimbursements to Hudson 

Valley, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false 

record or statement. 

FIFTH CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Presenting False Claims for Payment 

(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l)(A)) 

63 . The United States incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

64. The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3729(a)( l)(A) 

of the False Claims Act. 

65 .  By falsifying progress notes to state that a specific, routine procedure included 

separate and additional evaluation and management services, Hudson Valley knowingly caused 

to be presented false records or statements for reimbursement by Medicare and Medicaid. 

1 4  
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66. Accordingly, Hudson Valley knowingly caused to be presented false or fraudulent 

claims for payment or approval in violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l )  (2000), and, as amended, 

3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l )(A). 

67. By reason of these false or fraudulent claims that Hudson Valley caused to be 

presented to Medicare and Medicaid, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare 

and Medicaid reimbursements to Narco Freedom, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a 

civil monetary penalty for each false claim. 

SIXTH CLAIM 

Violation of the False Claims Act: Use of False Statements 

(31 .S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2006), and, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l)(B)) 

68. The United States incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as if 

fully set forth in this paragraph. 

69. The Government seeks relief against Hudson Valley under Section 3729(a)(l )(B) 

of the False Claims Act. 

70. · By falsifying progress notes to state that a specific, routine procedure included 

separate and additional evaluation and management services, Hudson Valley knowingly caused 

to be made false records or statements for reimbursement by Medicare and Medicaid. 

7 1 . Accordingly, Hudson Valley knowingly caused to be made false or fraudulent 

claims for payment or approval in violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) (2006), and, as amended, 

3 1  U.S.C. § 3729(a)(l )(B). 

72. By reason of these false or fraudulent records or statements that Hudson Valley 

caused, the United States has paid millions of dollars in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements 

to Hudson Valley, and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil monetary penalty for 

each false record or statement. 

1 5  
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the United States demands judgment against the defendant as follows: 

A. Treble the United States' damages, in an amount to be established at trial, plus an 

$ 1 1 ,000 penalty for each false claim submitted in violation of the False Claims 

Act; 

B .  Award o f  costs pursuant to 3 1  U.S.C. § 3792(a)(3); and 

C. Such further relief as is proper. 

Dated: New York, New York 
October 1 7, 2016  

By: 

1 6  

Respectfully submitted, 

PREET BHARARA 
United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York 
Attorney for the United States 

KIRTI VAID YA REDDY 
Assistant United States Attorney 
86 Chambers Street, 3 d  Floor 
New York, NY 1 0007 
Tel . :  (2 1 2) 637-275 1 
Fax: (21 2) 637-2786 
Email :  Kirti.reddy@usdoj .gov 
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UNITED STATES ATTORNEY' S  OFFICE 
Southern District of New York 
U. S.  ATTORNEY PREET BHARARA 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

date-----­
http://www.justice.gov/usao/nys 

CONTACT: U.S. ATTORNEY' S  OFFICE 
Jim Margolin, Dawn Dearden 
Nicholas Biase 
(2 1 2) 637-2600 

HHS-OIG 
Katherine Harris/Donald White 
(202) 6 1 9-0088 

MANHATTAN U.S. ATTORNEY ANNOUNCES $5.3 MILLION CIVIL 
SETTLEMENT AGAINST HEMATOLOGY-ONCOLOGY MEDICAL 

PRACTICE FOR SUBMITTING FALSE CLAIMS TO MEDICARE AND 
MEDICAID 

Preet Bharara, the United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York, and 
Scott Lampert, Special Agent-in-Charge of the New York Field Office of the U.S.  Department of 
Health and Human Services, Office of lnspector General's  ("HHS-OIG") New York Region, 
announced a $5 .3 1 million settlement of a civil fraud lawsuit against HUDSON VALLEY 
HEMATOLOGY ONCOLOGY ASSOCIATES, R.L.L.P. ("HUDSON VALLEY"). This 
settlement resolves claims brought under the False Claims Act, alleging that HUDSON VALLEY 
routinely waived copayments without lawful basis and systematically submitted false claims for 
services that it did not provide and/or were not permitted under the Medicare and Medicaid 
program rules. 

The Government simultaneously intervened in and settled this lawsuit, which was initially 
filed by a whistleblower. As alleged in the Government's complaint, from approximately 201 0  
through June 20 1 5, HUDSON VALLEY engaged in two false and fraudulent schemes to defraud 
the Government. In the first scheme, HUDSON VALLEY routinely waived Medicare 
beneficiaries' required copayments and instead fraudulently billed Medicare for those 
copayrnents. In the second scheme, HUDSON VALLEY submitted claims for payment by 
Medicare and Medicaid for services that were not actually performed, were not medically 
necessary, and/or were not properly documented. 

Today, United States District Judge Kenneth M. Karas approved the settlement stipulation 
to resolve the Government's claims against HUDSON VALLEY. Under that settlement, 
HUDSON VALLEY admits to and accepts responsibility for the misconduct alleged in the 
complaint and agrees to pay $5 .3 1 million to the United States. 
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Manhattan U.S.  Attorney Preet Bharara said: "HUDSON VALLEY improperly billed 
Medicare and Medicaid for reimbursement, costing the taxpayers millions of dollars. This 
settlement restores those funds to the public fisc and sends a message that fraudulent billing by 
healthcare providers will not be tolerated." 

HHS-010 Special Agent-in-Charge Scott Lampert said: [need quote] 

As part of the settlement, HUDSON VALLEY admitted, acknowledged, and accepted 
responsibility for engaging in the following conduct from 20 1 0-20 1 5 :  

• Routinely waiving Medicare beneficiaries' copayments without an individualized 
documented determination of financial hardship or exhaustion of reasonable 
collection efforts; 

• Billing Medicare for the waived copayments, resulting in higher reimbursement 
amounts from Medicare than HUDSON VALLEY was entitled to; 

• Overbilling Medicare and Medicaid for evaluation and management services 
codes, in addition to billing for routine procedures (such as chemotherapy, 
injections or venipunctures) on the same date, even though Hudson Valley had not 
documented that it provided any significant, separately identifiable evaluation and 
management services to the beneficiaries; and 

• Billing Medicare and Medicaid for evaluation and management services codes, 
without documenting in the medical record that those services were medically 
necessary and/or that those services were actually performed. 

Mr. Bharara praised the extensive investigative work performed by HHS-010. 

The case is being handled by the Office's  Civil Frauds Unit. Mr. Bharara established the 
Civil Frauds Unit in March 201 0  to bring renewed focus and additional resources to combating 
healthcare and other types of frauds. Assistant U.S.  Attorney Kirti Vaidya Reddy is in charge of 
the case. 

1 6-
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